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ITEM NO. 38:

CHANGE IN ZONING AND PROJECT DISTRICT PHASE 1 APPROVAL
FOR "HONUA'ULAIWAILEA 670" RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
(C.c. No. 01-334)

CHAIR CARROLL: .. .(gavel) . .. This Land Use Committee meeting of January 4, 2006 is now in
session. I'd like to welcome you all. Again, if anybody wants to give testimony tonight, please
go to my left and sign up at the desk over there.
This afternoon we have with us Councilmembers Joe Pontanilla, Vice-Chair of the Land Use
Committee; Michelle Anderson; Dain Kane; Danny Mateo; Mike Molina; and Charmaine
Tavares. Excused for tonight are Jo Anne Johnson and Council Chair Riki Hokama.
Getting right into the mix over here, the program for tonight, the applicant is going to be making
a presentation, after which the Department will give their comments, and we will go right into
public testimony. Having said that, Mr. Jencks, are you ready?
MR. JENCKS (from the audience): Yes, I am, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed. And while he is grabbing his microphone, please, if anyone has pagers
or cell phones, please tum them off or put them to the silent mode. Thank you.
Note:

PowerPoint presentation.

MR. JENCKS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Can you hear me, can everybody hear me in the back? Raise,
raise your hand if you can hear me. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I'd like to first thank ... folks for coming out tonight. This is a very important night for the
project and for the project team. And before we go any further, I'd like to first introduce so the
Council Members know, and the Staff knows and you know who is here tonight helping me
make this reality.
First, I'd like to introduce Mr. John Ford from SWCA. John is the expert who does all of the, the
animal and, and vegetative analysis work for the project; Mr. Aki Sinoto, the project
archeologist; Mr. Wayne Yoshioka from Parsons Brinkerhoff, who has done the traffic analysis
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work not only for this project but also the Kihei Traffic Master Plan; Mike Fujita from Wilson
Okamoto & Associates, who did all the civil engineering work today; Ms. Gwen Hiraga, who has
been with me for years, and a very good friend I served with in the County, handling all of the
major entitlement issues; Mr. Tom Schnell from PBR Hawaii, who is basically specialized in the
land planning aspects and the community development aspects; and last, certainly, but not least,
Mr. Martin Luna, a very talented lawyer and a person who has been a very good friend and, and
supportive in this project; and also Linn Nishikawa, who, who has helped put together this site
visit today and, and also this great presentation and any collateral material. I don't know if
Kimokeo is here, but Kimokeo has also been a very strong supporter of the project and actively
involved in the cultural aspects of the project.
So, that's the team. They're here tonight. If, if anyone has any questions from the Councilor the
Staff, they're here to answer any questions you may have.
My name is Charlie Jencks, and I'm here to give you a brief summary on this important project.
The project name is Honua'ula. And one of the first things I want to tell you is that this project
implements the Kihei-Makena Community Plan, which is very important for all of us to
understand. First of all and foremost, the Community Plan calls for a mix of housing and
single-family and multi-family type of units. We have 40 percent single-family in the land plan
and 60 percent multi-family. We are proposing at this time a 25 percent affordable component.
Half of that, or 175 units, would be at 100 percent or less of the County median, and the balance,
or 175 units, half at 120 percent and half at 140 percent. Now, some of the things I need to tell
you about the affordable component are important. We have for the 100 percent the one--go
back to the other slide. There you go. For the 100 percent we have a ten-year occupancy
requirement and a very strict resale requirement on those units. We also will require or
proposing to require that you have a one-year residency requirement in Maui County, and a
three-year limitation on prior ownership prior to buying a unit at 100 percent or less. We also
have a very strict resale requirement restricting you to 6 Y2 percent gain on the equity or
investment in the unit and in the improvements, and we're proposing a property tax rollback for
the least expensive affordable product. If you sell before the ten-year expiration time, you pay
all of the back taxes. The, the purpose of that is to create penalties to keep the units affordable
for a greater period of time. The 100, the 120 percent and the 140 percent units have the same
restrictions on resale for the years of occupancy, which are five and three years respectively.
Next slide.
The Community Plan also asks for a Village Mixed Use/Commercial area, and what we put in
this project is 56 acres combining residential--it can be single-family or multi-family--and
neighborhood commercial. And the neighborhood commercial uses are those you'd find in a
typical neighborhood business district: a supermarket, maybe a dentist office, maybe a gas
station--those kinds of things you need on a daily basis to keep you in the community. And
we're limiting that commercial development to 80,000 gross square feet to serve 1,400 units.
Eighty thousand gross square feet is quite a bit. For those of you who live Upcountry and know
Upcountry, the Pukalani Superette, for example, is a 10,000 square foot place. So it gives you an
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idea of how big of a grocery store you can put in a project and serve the neighborhood within
which you, you are located.
We have one 18-hole golf course. It's intended to be a homeowner golf course. And part of the
idea with the one golf course was over the--and I'm going to show you a matrix that
demonstrates the entitlement over the years for this project. The golf course ... and one golf
course gives us more land for residential development, and also helps us reduce the density in the
residential development down to about 2.1 units per acre on a gross basis.
Public and private amenities. We have public parks; we have public trail and pathway systems in
the project, not only on the roadways, but also in the open space corridors connecting all
elements of the project; and also private recreational facilities. There was a, there was a
statement today made about recreational facilities in the project. It's our expectation that we
would, of course, build park facilities to serve the residents, open to the public, but also within
the projects that are built in the project, for example, in the multi-family sectors they will also be
building recreational facilities for those residents as well. So we're going to double up in many
respects on the recreational opportunity, but also remember, I think there's a great opportunity to
give, to get money out to the County of Maui for park development in Central Maui, Central
Kihei, which is what you really need. Next slide.
Buffer zones surround the project and they interface with Maui Meadows as well as the Piilani
Highway and Wailea Resort. The acreage for buffer zones and open space in the project is
90 acres at this point. So that's, that's a significant amount of land for that category, including
park space.
Future Public Use Sites. The VMX District allows the County to expand police substations, fire
stations, County offices, if necessary. The VMX District in that 80,000 square feet allows for
that to occur. So if there is a need, a demonstrated need, the land is there in the community to
provide for those facilities. So that summarizes how this project implements the Kihei-Makena
Community Plan. All these elements are in the Project 9 description in the plan, and this is how
we're satisfying those specific requirements.
terms of land use entitlement today, the entire site is designated Urban by the State Land Use
Commission. It's Urban. The Community Plan designates the project as Project District 9 in its
entirety, and the zoning for the project right now is Project 9 in the Maui County Code for two
golf courses and accessory uses and with a balance of about 400 acres in Agriculture and Open
Space, the Open Space being the open space corridors in the project area, which I'll show you in
a few moments. This matrix was done to illustrate how this project has evolved over the last,
well, since 1988. And you can see in the historic line, and I'll walk it across, we started in
1988/1992 with a Community Plan Amendment to create Project District 9. We had 2,650 units
in this Project District, 850 in the, in the Village Mixed Use area, we had a resort lodge, and
1,320 units in the Residential, single-family and multi-family. As we go across, in 1993 there
was no Residential, but they did zone the two golf courses, the 396 acres, two 18-hole golf
courses. In '94 we ended up with 2,100 units and two 18-hole golf courses when the land was
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urbanized by the State Land Use Commission. And lastly, the current plan, 2006, we paid... pay
particular attention to this. We have 1,400 units maximum; we have no resort lodge; we have 53
acres of Village Mixed Use; we have 1,400 units maximum; we have 80,000 gross square feet, as
opposed to 6 and 9 in, in previous approvals of Commercial; one 200 acre 18-hole golf course,
and 90 acres of Park and Open Space, as opposed to 32, 6, and 36 in prior approvals.
So what you, what we've demonstrated in this matrix is that over time this project has increased
certain categories and decreased others in response to entitlement issues, in response to the
community concerns and what we've heard coming from local government as well, traffic issues,
water issues. The limitations we have to work within are reflected in this table, and the reduction
from 2,650 down to 1,400 units, which is what we're asking for today. Next slide.
These are the groups that we made contact with after 2001 when we took over this project. We
went out, back out to the, the folks in the community, met with them ... sometimes a couple of
times to understand what their concerns were, and then modified the plan accordingly. Next
slide.
These are the governmental units and organizations we have met with, sometimes repeatedly
over the last year to talk about the project, to make sure that we're on the same page with regard
to wastewater, with regard to traffic, with regard to police issues, fire issues, what have you.
This is a list of the governmental agencies that provided input and assistance and help in guiding
us to develop the plan you'll see tonight.
The current plan--there was some talk about this, this today on the site visit--it's a good mix of
Residential, both single-family and multi-family, and also Commercial, which is I think what
everybody wants to see done in Maui County. The project plan itself embraces a lot of smart
growth principles, and I'll just run through these very quick, quickly. We combined the various
residential densities with commercial uses in the VMX District. We have Open Space features
integrated into the plan. They're not. .. they're, they're a part of the plan and they actually
provide corridors for pathways for access through ... and through the project. Bicycle and
pedestrian facilities connect neighborhoods to achieve a walkable scale. We have achieved
connectivity with outside communities with trails, such as Maui Meadows. You can get access
into the project on the trail system, and we've also provided a mass transit opportunity. At every
VMX District location in the project we've located a bus stop, so that in the future when the
County does expand their system, they can pick up people at the VMX District where people
work or live and work. No costly extension on public utilities, such as water or sewer services.
The water system in the project is private. It will be a dual system of potable and nonpotable.
The wastewater system will be private, and we'll then take water that's, that's used in the project,
treat it, and put it back on the site for irrigation purposes. Both of these utilities regulated by the
Public Utilities Commission.
The VMX District provides for future public service opportunities, I mentioned those. The
Residential component covers approximately 350 acres, or 55 percent of the site. Commercial
uses include neighborhood type uses, as I've described. And one of the most important things,
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this is not, this is not a resort project where you, you have a lot of impact and everybody
disappears and all the money is made by the contractors. This is a 20-year build-out. You can
only build so many houses a year to sell. You can only build so many lineal feet of roadway to
serve those homes. You can only build so much park space in a year. So our estimation is this is
a 20-year build-out for the Residential and Commercial and Open Space component of the
project.
This is a concept plan that we viewed today on the site visit, and what we're going to do is leave
this back up on the screen for discussion later on. It's 670 acres. The project site is bisected by
the future alignment of the Kihei-Upcountry highway, if that ever comes to pass, going up to
Ulupalakua. I sincerely doubt it. The State has mentioned no interest in expanding that roadway.
We have a, we have a primary and secondary road system. On that road system we have three
miles of off-road bicycle and pedestrian pathways, in addition to those that are located in the
drainage and open space corridor areas for connectivity in the project. The wastewater treatment
plant is located right here in this comer, so it's a gravity fed system. We have right now two
wells on-site up in the upper comer where my finger is pointing. Those wells will do a million
gallons a day of good potable water today. The water may have to be treated as we pump down
and serve the project. We have the single-family areas noted, which are in the yellow, and the
ochre areas are the multi-family. The VMX Districts are five in the project. So we can serve
with that 80,000 square feet, we can spread it around in the project. We have one district here,
one here, there's one up here, there's one here, and there's one over here. (Pointing to the
concept plan) So what we can do is we can take that 80,000 square feet and spread it throughout
the project and serve the neighborhoods as they develop. As I said, the affordable housing would
be built in the project as well. Okay, next slide.
Okay, infrastructure master plan. Private potable and nonpotable water systems will be built;
private on-site wastewater treatment system with reclaimed water used for irrigation; privately
built and public accessible roads and pathway systems; public and private park facilities; open
space system used for natural drainage and pathways; and roundabouts at major intersections
within the project to facilitate traffic control and a rural, rural environment; street systems built at
rural standards to create a non-urban environment in the project. The density is very low. As I
said earlier, we're at 2.1 units per acre on a gross basis. That's a rural density. And by the way,
that 1,400 units that I've talked about, which is the maximum for the project, would include any
ohanas. So we're not going to build 1,400 units plus ... double that with ohanas. It's 1,400 units
maximum, including the affordable component. Connectivity to adjacent communities. We're
providing that and encouraging Maui Meadows and Wailea Resort, and any other future
communities to come into, into this community and use it for the commercial uses that, that exist
to keep traffic at a local level. Drought tolerant xeriscape plants used to reduce water use. Use
of native plants. We've been actively propagating native plants offsite for use in the project.
And we've included within the project district regulations energy efficiency recommendations
that will be included in the zoning document.
As for off-site infrastructure benefits, park assessment fees for this project based upon 1,400
units. This is money paid to the County of Maui for park fees when you do a subdivision or you
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build a multi-family project. Right now the park fee is $11,800 per lot. If you build a 100-10t
subdivision, that's a million dollars in park fees. That money goes a long way to create park
opportunities and improvements in South Maui. Sixteen million could be realized in park fees
for this project alone. The Little League field that was, was approved in the zoning for the golf
course ...we've, we've discussed this idea with the Parks Department, and our proposal is that
instead of building a Little League field at the end of Piilani Highway, that money should be
going to develop park facilities that are needed in Central Kihei. So our proposal to the Parks
Department or the Council will be to give the Council and the County the value of the land for
the Little League facility in the project, and the improvements that we agree upon that are
specified in the zoning, cash at Phase 1 approval so that they can take that money, which was
estimated a number of years ago in excess of $3 Y2 million, and use that to improve a Little
League facility and the new regional park in Central Kihei. The Maui Planning Commission,
we, we proposed and they approved in our conditions, that we would pay a $5,000 per unit traffic
impact fee for 1,400 units. That's $7 million in traffic impact fees. Some people asked me,
"Gee, well, what would that do for us?" If you take that, that $7 million and you use that as a
federally-funded match of20 percent, that's $35 million in roadway improvements if you use the
money that way. That's a significant amount of improvement in South Maui, and the money
would stay in South Maui. And lastly, the school fee for the project was originally... when this
project was approved by the State Land Use Commission for urbanization, the requirement was
to pay $895 per unit at the close of escrow. And I have to tell you, as a prior public servant, I just
can't stand up in front of you and say that I think that's a good deal for today. I don't think that's
the right thing to do. So, I have contacted the Department of Education, and I'm proposing that
we increase that to $3,000 per dwelling unit to go to the State Department of Education to
buy... that money could be used to buy the land for a new high school in South Maui. Next
slide.
Okay, this is my conclusionary slide. Implements the Community Plan. We've worked hard to
do that, to look at the description, and not only the current Community Plan, but also the prior
Community Plan, and make sure that we're consistent with both of those documents, and we are.
We're providing housing in this project at all levels. We're going to assist in infrastructure
development. We've already done that to a degree by paying for and ensuring that the interim
improvements to Piilani Highway got accomplished in a timely manner without any, without any
problems of any permits in hand whatsoever. We paid $350,000 in, in partnership with Makena
Resort to get the design done and also help get the funding to get those improvements in place.
And we're also working to address the concerns of the community, whether it's park issues,
whether it's infrastructure issues. We're out there to help solve problems, not create problems,
and I think we've done a pretty good job in communicating our, our willingness to participate
and support and make sure that we give back to this community as we develop this project over
time.
So, Mr. Chair, that's my presentation. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Jencks.
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AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: We'd now like to hear from the Planning Department. Mr. Foley.
Note:

Short pause.

MS. SUYAMA: Just to summarize, the Maui Planning Commission originally held the public hearing
on this application on October 30, 2000. At that time the Commission deferred action because
they wanted the applicant to do two things. One was to have community meetings with the
community organizations, which they did. And two was to come out with more concrete
information on infrastructure improvements, primarily traffic and water.
Finally, on
October 23,2001, this application came back to the Planning Commission. The Planning
Commission at that time recommended approval of the Change in Zoning, Project District
Amendment, and Project District Phase 1 approval, subject to 13 conditions.
In summary, the conditions are:
1.

That the applicant will develop its own private water source and water system.

2.

That Wailea 670, at that time, would participate in their pro-rata share of transportation
improvement as determined by both the State Department of Transportation and the
Department of Public Works and Environmental Management.

3.

That as represented by the applicant, that they will voluntarily contribute $5,000 per unit
for traffic improvements.

4.

That they would be responsible for all infrastructure requirements and improvements as
determined for the project by the governmental agencies.

5.

That the applicant shall provide housing within all consumer groups and including those
in the affordable and moderate income housing groups as determined by the Department
of Housing and Human Concerns. At that time we had determined it would be in,
concert with the Department of Housing and Human Concerns because there were no
Countywide housing policy to follow. So it was a general criteria that was set. The
Council now is reviewing affordable housing criteria, and this condition may be subject
to change to what the Council may come up with, their affordable housing criteria.

6.

That a master drainage report and phasing plan shall be submitted during the Phase 2
Project District review process.

7.

That the applicant shall implement an Animal Management Plan approved by the
Department of Land and Natural Resources for the management of animal intrusions into
the development. And this was a problem at that time dealing with the deer and feral pigs
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that come into the community, that they would establish some kind of management plan
for that.
8.

That all future owners would be notified of this management plan.

9.

That the assessment of the owl and the Hawaiian Hoary Bat shall be undertaken by the
applicant in coordination with the Department of Land and Natural Resources and, if
appropriate, mitigative measures shall be incorporated into the development.

10.

That nonpotable water resources shall be used, such as effluent from the Kihei
Wastewater Reclamation Plant, shall be utilized for irrigation purposes.

11.

In lieu of dedication of the Little League field, as represented the applicant shall dedicate
the estimated cost of constructing the park to the County of Maui for development of
other parks and parks facilities within the Kihei Regional Park.

12.

That the applicant shall execute a unilateral agreement with the Department of Parks and
Recreation to set the terms and conditions for nonprofit play and use by the junior golf
program of the golf course as represented by the applicant. And this was in lieu of their
change from two golf courses to one golf course. Because in the original State District
Boundary Amendment one of the golf courses was supposed to be for public play, while
the other was a private golf course. And with the change to basically just one golf course,
this was the condition that we had worked out with the applicant as represented.

l3.

That a permanent cultural plan developed with the Cultural Committee shall be
developed for the project to ensure cultural access to sites within Wailea 670.

This concludes the Department's presentation.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. We are now going to go directly into public testimony. When your
name is called, please come to the microphone and state your name clearly for the record. You
will have three minutes. At three minutes you
be notified, you
have one minute to
conclude. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the first testifier is Mark Walker, to be followed by Bud Pikrone .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. WALKER: My name is Mark Walker. Good evening, Chairman. '. How about that? Good
evening. My name is Mark Walker. Good evening, Chairman Carroll, Committee Members.
The proposed project area has been under discussion for many, many years. The current
ownership group has made it a point to include the community in the design planning process.
And based on this interaction and good planning principles, the owners are proposing a low
density project complete with a small commercial component, recreational areas, and lots of
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open space. Honua 'ula is consistent with the Kihei-Makena Community Plan, and the project is
developing its own water source. If approved, this project will take a number of years to begin
construction. The total project will be built in phases and will take close to 20 years to complete.
This is a long-term project and not something that will happen overnight. Given the current lack
of housing inventory in South Maui, Honua'ula would only help to stabilize real estate prices by
providing much needed housing to the South Maui market. There are no perfect projects, but it
seems to me that Honua 'ula offers more positive than negative. I support Honua'ula and hope
that you will as well. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Can he state his name? I didn't hear it.
CHAIR CARROLL: Could you state your name again, please?
MR. WALKER: Mark Walker.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
MR. WALKER: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Bud Pikrone, to be followed by Susan Guard.
MR. PIKRONE: Good evening, Members. My name is Bud Pikrone. I'm the General Manager of the
Wailea Community Association. I'm here speaking on behalf of the Association.
We have been meeting with Mr. Jencks and the Wailea 670 group for a number of years, at least
ten years that I know of, and as far back as 2000 we actually had an agreement with them based
on issues that we had. So they were very attentive in our concerns on a number of issues, those
being traffic; drainage; the sewage treatment plant location; the extension of Piilani Highway,
and ever that happens there ... being a part of that. So we feel that they've been very, very
attentive to our concerns. And as a matter of fact, they even met with us again this summer and
presented to our board the latest plan, which included everything that we had asked them for
back in 2000. So they have kept their promises to our community, and we believe that this
project is good for South Maui. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members, questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Hi.
MR. PIKRONE: Hi.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks for being here. The agreement that you folks signed has
eight conditions ...
MR. PIKRONE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .in October of 2000 and, and that still stands and there's no
changes to that?
MR. PIKRONE: There have been no changes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I wanted to ask you about. . .it says one of the conditions, Wailea
670 will contribute to the development and maintenance of beach accesses in the Wailea-Makena
area. The Wailea Community Association and Wailea 670 will continue to work together to
solve beach access and related issues to mutual satisfaction. Can you, can you give us some idea
of what you mean by development and maintenance of beach accesses in the Wailea area?
MR. PIKRONE: Certainly. Right now the beach accesses in the Wailea area--Polo Beach, Wailea
Beach, Ulua Beach, and the two accesses at Keawekapu--those are maintained by the Wailea
Community Association. We do the janitorial work, we do all the landscaping work, and we
keep them...keep them up. We also take care of the parking lots and painting the parking lots
and all of that. So we do all of the maintenance. And what we have asked for is to have the 670
group participate in any improvements that the Parks Department and the Community
Association feel are necessary. As a matter of fact, we have been in conversation with
Mr. Jencks on an improvement that was approved by the Council last year, I believe it was,
maybe a little longer, to add parking to the Keawekapu II, as we call it, area. It would add 23
parking stalls, which is much needed in that area. And unfortunately, there was no money to
have that done at the time. It was about $40,000. So we were looking at funds from some of the
developers that were coming into Wailea, and Mr. Jencks offered to take a look at that and see
what they could do. So we're still in conversation with that. But that's a typical thing, that and
also on the maintenance issues of the parks.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

sorry, but you went too fast for me.

MR. PIKRONE: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you name those, those three beach accesses again?
MR. PIKRONE: Well, okay, there's Polo Beach-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, Polo Beach.
MR. PIKRONE: --there's Wailea Beach, there's Ulua Beach, and there's two at Keawekapu.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so the, the ...how many extra parking, 23 did you say or-- 12-
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MR. PIKRONE: Twenty-three in that, in that particular beach. And we're also looking at, I forgot to
mention, Kilohana Park. There's 13 acres of park there that are underutilized. There's only
about an acre and a half, maybe two, that are developed right now with a soccer field. It's been
in disrepair. We're looking at, at improving that. We'd like to develop the full 13 acres. So
that's a program we're beginning to look at now with the Parks Department, and we hope for
continued support from the 670 and other developers in our area.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So where would the 23 parking spaces be added?
MR. PIKRONE: Well, they were approved to run parallel parking on the makai side of South Kihei
Road and some on the mauka side, with a sidewalk for walking so you could get around. Right
now a lot of people when the cars park, they're parking, just pulling in on the dirt there on one
side and people have to walk down the street to get to their vehicles or to get around.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Are you talking about the, the parking lot on Kilohana or the one
at the far end?
MR. PIKRONE: The one at the end. The one at the far end, yes ... the one at the far end when you go
down to the dead end of South Kihei Road there.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And there's room for 23 more spaces?
MR. PIKRONE: Actually, there was a plan approved by the Council for that. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good evening, Mr. Pikrone. The 23 parking lot, parking
stalls on Kihei Road, you say that the County didn't have the $40,000 to do it?
MR. PIKRONE:

the time, yes.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you. We do have the Public Works Deputy over
here. I hope he takes note of it. --(CHANGE OF TAPE)-CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Susan Guard, to be followed by Charles Hills.
MS. GUARD: Good evening. I hope you can hear me.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: You can adjust that.
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MS. GUARD: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just the mic part, just the mic.
MS. GUARD: Oh, I see. Okay. Okay, is this better? Okay, well. .. Okay. Thank you for having this
opportunity to testify before you. The Wall Street Journal reported that Maui properties, property
taxes were cheap and that, that it was an incredible value. The word was sent out, Maui was for
sale cheap. Those with resources could buy paradise. Almost overnight Maui has changed. This
is a year, a new year, hopefully the year. Development proposals come before you for approval.
You have the power to ask the questions. Who are the target customers? Will it benefit the local
community? Will it enhance the environment? Will it hinder public access to the parts of Maui
that are special for all? Will it help solve our problems now? With all of the multi-million dollar
transactions sold over the last few years, our County coffers should be overflowing. We should
have incredible parks, schools, roads, water systems, Police and Fire Departments. Do we? We
have a crime problem in our area. For the first time in 40-plus years we had to call the police to
our home, and the officer told us to call the Vice Department, which we did. The recorded
message was vice was closed for the week. How can that be? Schools are using tents as
classrooms. How can that be? The limited water we do have available to us is hazardous to our
health. How can that be? Our youth do not see a future for themselves here. How can that be?
It is just not right. I spoke before the Council previously, ironically on the Wailea 670 project. I
compared the growth on Maui to setting up an aquarium. You have to add the fish, the
inhabitants, slowly in number. Let the filtration catch up to the work effectively before adding
more. I asked and still do, why is development good for Maui? Who is it good for? Please, ask
the questions. You are the stop gate. You can say no. Now is the time. Take the time now to
determine at what cost we can allow more development to bring more people to the precious
parts of Maui. Let's stop until we can catch up and fix the current problems caused by the
unprecedented growth. Let's set the bar so high that developers have to reconsider. They're
making hundreds and hundreds of millions of dollars. It is time they leave some of that obscene
profit on Maui and participate in building a better community for everyone. The Maui life that is
being sold is much different from the one that most of us live. As the disparity of wealth grows,
so do our community problems. You can't change that, but you can force those who are creating
it to allow the rest of Maui a better life, not one that is worse. Otherwise, why let it happen? If
they want to develop something, make it include something for the families that live and work
here.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. GUARD: Give them a chance to participate in that life. Dream big for your community and your
constituents. Ask the questions. You know the right answers. Thank you very much and Happy
New Year.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much for coming, Susan. I know you live
Upcountry, so this wasn't an easy trip for you to make, and I appreciate you being here. You and
your husband own The Pet Shop at the Maui Mall, is that right?
MS. GUARD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And do any of your employees own their own home?
MS. GUARD: A couple do own their own homes. Most of them, most of the people that work in retail
are single moms or young, young women. And no, they, they don't have that ability to own their
own homes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you for, for being here, appreciate it.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
MS. GUARD: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Charles Hills, to be followed by Travis Thompson.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Excuse me, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: IfI can just make one real fast request again that you've stated earlier. If
I may have the floor for just a second before the next testifier. Thank you. Two things that the
Chair has already stated. First, if you have a cell phone, can you please tum it off? And second,
if you can please state your name before you start your testimony, that would help us a lot easier
in having to ask you what your name is, and watching people walk out with phones ringing.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Proceed.
MR. HILLS: Thank you. Chairman, Members of the Council. I want to thank you for the opportunity
to comment on this project. My name is Charles Hills. I'm a permanent resident of Maui. I'm
not associated with Charlie Jencks, and I'm speaking as an individual.
I would like to speak in favor of this. I would speak in favor of it because it is consistent with
the Community Plan. I would speak in favor of it because they have addressed one of the major
issues that we're all concerned with, which is water. I believe that their, their approach in terms
of smart growth and the mixed use of both commercial and residential within this makes it a very
valuable project. I am... grateful and I am also appreciative of the respect that they have shown
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for the archeological sites, and the plans that they have made to preserve those and make them
available to the community. I believe the affordable portion of this, they've taken a little bit of a
lead on it. As far as I know, the County Council has not determined exactly yet what percentage
should be built, and yet they're willing to step up to a 30 percent. .. percentage, which I think is
excellent. But mostly I'm in favor of this because it's a model for planning. They have done a, a
good job of going around to all the community organizations to ask for their input and to address
those. They have taken a smart direction in terms of the commitment to the community and to
the County, both in terms of parks and infrastructure. And I believe that the County will benefit
in terms of this as a long-term project because you have projected impact, you have projected
jobs, and you have projected income. I see it as a win-win. Those are my comments, and thank
you agam.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
MR. HILLS: Mahalo.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Travis Thompson, to be followed by Joe Bertram.
MR. THOMPSON: Good evening, Members of the Council. Thanks for allowing me to testify. My
name is Travis Thompson. I'm here as the President ofthe Wailea Community Association. I'm
speaking in favor of this change, proposed Change in Zoning for the project.
From the beginning, we have worked very carefully with Mr. Jencks and his, and the people in
the project. We've made ... they have reviewed their changes with us proposed... or their plans
with us. We've recommended changes and looked at what they've had, and they've actually
implemented. They listened when we talked. And we feel they are going to be an excellent
neighbor to us, and we are, frankly, very enthusiastic about getting on with this project. We
commend you for your support. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Joe Bertram, to be followed by David Frazier.
MR. BERTRAM: Good evening. Welcome, Council Members, to our humble, little abode here in
Kihei, one bathroom place. I'm here to testify. I'm the President of Greenways Maui, and I'm
here to testify in favor of this project. I was on the Planning Commission when the original
project was presented to us, and at that time it was single-family, multi-family connected only by
roads and cars around two golf courses, with a projected children's popUlation of seven. So they
hadn't, they did not anticipate any kind of a school impact fee because of that. That was, that
was what was deferred by us at that time before they came back with some improvements. This
is light years, this is light years different.
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I was part of the Kihei 2000 Community Plan Amendment. We created that, a group of us with
the Kihei Community Association. Everything we put in that plan in language they put on the
map. When he brought this to us, I was shocked, I was speechless to see our dream that we had
talked about actually mapped out. So we, we support it very much. That was gated, this isn't.
This includes 3,000 per unit for schools, that had 7 kids. To say that it's different is, is not even
comparing apples to oranges. 670 Associates is Goodfellow Brothers. They're a local company
that's been here forever, and they're very known, especially here in Kihei, for their community
mindedness and what they have given back to the community. As they've said, Charlie has been
working with not only KCA, but other community groups. He has organized already a meeting
with us, the Kihei Community Association, and Haleakala Ranch so we can start talking about all
the lands that stretch between this project and down into the northern area so that we can start as
a community planning this together. So this is someone who seems really committed to the
whole idea of community-based planning, to making neighborhoods instead of separate
developments that are walkable so we can still .. .looking at the type of villages and, and the
types of, of land use that is actually called for in our General Plan but are not reflected in our
current land use laws.
And finally, we have to say yes to something. I, I understand people saying no to this and no and
stop and slow, but we have to say yes to something. On the Commission we turned down
Po' olenalena Point Church, which was going to be a church that was going to be for weddings,
that was right next to Po'olenalena Beach. They were going to preserve a Hawaiian area there
and they were going to preserve the trail to the secret beach there. They turned it down because
people said no, we don't want any development here. A private residence went in. They took
over the Hawaiian place, so that's all inside a wall now. And they covered up the trail, so we had
to actually put a trail way out. ..basically got the worst that we could have gotten. Let's go for
the best. Let's say yes to something. We can't just keep saying no, we have to say yes, and this
is something good to say yes to. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause). ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Bertram. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. Thanks, Joe, for being here, appreciate it.
MR. BERTRAM: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I guess my question would be, are you aware that the Maui Meadows
Homeowners Association.. .is against their roads being connected? 'Cause we talk about, you're
talking about connectivity between communities.
MR. BERTRAM: Yes. Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And we've got written testimony from a person who represents,
according to their testimony, the Homeowners Association that are opposed to proceeding with
the development. And specifically with respects to your testimony, that they are opposed to
having any type of connectivity other than the main Piilani Highway area.
MR. BERTRAM: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: How does that tie into your comments about this having connectivity to
the other communities-MR. BERTRAM: Well, I know-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --or the other neighborhoods?
MR. BERTRAM: Yes. I know that this particular association is--there are actually two associations in
Maui Meadows, and I'm not even sure which, which ones are, are currently working and which
ones aren't. At the KCA level we've always pushed for a connection between Maui Meadows, a
road connection, at least at Akala. But, most importantly, is also walking and biking
connections. That's the most important. We don't want folks that need to, you know, walk to
their neighbors that are just across the way and not be able to get there besides going on Piilani
Highway. For emergency use, too, we need to make sure that they get through. And the whole
idea of trying to keep people in their neighborhoods, since they are going to have some great
neighborhood stores there that people can access, because Maui Meadows was not planned that
way. That was a very, very poorly planned neighborhood. So, I understand their initial
resistance to it, but I think as we go along and we show that the actual connectivity adds to their,
to their benefit as well as to the community-wide benefit, that that will probably be addressed.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And forgive me, that testimony also talks about
trail connectivity as being fine, but not road connectivity. So if you ...maybe you can revise, is
there any revision to your comments based on my original question?
MR. BERTRAM: No, I, I think you will always find there's going to be initial resistance to such things,
but that doesn't mean that the developer hasn't made a good faith effort to actually create that
kind of connectivity.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Ifnone, thank you.
MR. BERTRAM: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is David Frazier, to be followed by Gregory Figueira.
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MR. FRAZIER: Good evening, Chair, other Council Members. My name is David Frazier, and I'm
here tonight on behalf of the Kihei, Kihei Community Association as President and representing
the board. I have submitted my letter for testimony, and I'll just read it, it's very short. But
before I do that, I also just wanted to acknowledge that I have several other of my board
members here, Tom Bigelow, Joe Bertram, Joseph Bean, Matt Kosek and Michael DiBella all
here tonight as representatives.
The letter is very brief. It just says, Dear Land Use Committee Members: The Kihei
Community Association is in strong support of the Land Use Plan and concepts for the
Honua 'ula project. We are pleased to see inherent in the plan the preservation of cultural sites
and drainageways, integration of pedestrian circulation and connectivity, bicycle routes, mixed
use, mixed density, mixed income, and public and community amenities. We take this project
very seriously with respect to its proper integration into the greater Kihei-Makena community.
The KCA is committed to working with the developer and the County of Maui in such ways to
assure that the best interest of the Kihei-Makena community specifically and Maui in general.
On behalf of the entire Board of Directors of the KCA, thank you very much for your vigilance
and review ofthis proposed project development. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Gregory Figueira, to be followed by Ed Kennedy.
MR. FIGUEIRA: Hi. Good evening, Mr. Chairman. My name is Greg Figueira, and I'm in favor of the
Honua 'ula project. I have watched Mr. Jencks and the board work on this for a long time, and
everything that I've heard here tonight is all positive. So, I hope that you'll go ahead and support
this project. That's all I have to say.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Ed Kennedy, to be followed by Buck Joiner.
MR. KENNEDY: Mr. Chairman, Members of the Land Use Committee, my name is
Kennedy. I live
at 535 Kohala Street in Maui Meadows, and I'm here representing the Maui Meadows
Homeowners Association as a member of their board. We are the Association of the resident
property owners in Maui Meadows. It's distinguished from the other one, which can include
anybody who resides in Maui Meadows.
We have expressed our concerns over this development for a number of years. Mr. Jencks and
his staff have worked diligently to address not only ours but other concerns in the Kihei and
Wailea areas, and we applaud his efforts and we think he's done a magnificent job in improving
the original concept. However, we still have very serious concerns, concerns that, that are not
always within his control, but which you, the Maui County government, we think need to
address.
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First and foremost of these is the Piilani Highway. Mr. Jencks has stated that his company's
obligation has been completed by their contribution of $350,000 to the widening of the Piilani
Highway. As you know, that Piilani Highway improvement between the Mokulele Highway and
the intersection of Kilohana Drive and Mahu Place was converted from a two-lane highway to a
four-lane highway in 2003. This improvement was badly needed and has greatly improved the
traffic flow in South Maui. However, it's an interim highway, meaning it does not meet the State
standards for a four-lane highway, and is approved for only a limited period of time. After that
period the highway either has to be brought up to State standards or returned to its original use.
That's why the speed limit on that highway is only 40 miles an hour. The lanes are too narrow,
the bridges are too narrow, the shoulders are too narrow.
The interim approval period expires in 2010. Our question is, what are you doing to have that
finalized and brought up to date? The Piilani Highway from Kilohana Drive and Mahu Place
down to its southern extremity is still two lanes, and it has a 45-mile an hour speed limit, even
though it's got big cuts through two huge lava banks. Mr. Jencks has no intention of assisting in
the widening of the highway in this portion of the road, which is the entrance to his development
as well as the entrance to the Makena Resort project. What are you doing to complete the
widening of the Piilani Highway from ... all the way from one end to the other, and what do you
expect the developers to contribute to that widening?
In short, we believe that before you can approve either Wailea 670 or the Makena Resort, you
must have the Piilani Highway improvement plans approved, budgeted, contracted, scheduled
and under way.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. KENNEDY: Our second major concern is water. You must assure the residents of Maui
Meadows ...Maui that the water for these developments is available and deliverable. Mr. Jencks
states that he will be doing this through private water. We believe that you, the Mayor, the
County Water Department, and the Water Commission must assure the citizens of Maui that this
additional water is permanently available and assured before you can consider approving the
development.
As far as the buffer zone is concerned, particularly Mr. Kane, we do approve connecting trails.
However, I have lived in too many neighborhoods where there is in...not enough highway
traffic to get to an area and then adjacent neighborhoods become shortcuts. That's our major
concern. We don't want traffic shortcutting through Maui Meadows to get access to Wailea 670.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. KENNEDY: Please don't fill the buffer with tall trees. Use shrubs and whatnot. And finally, if
you're going to have a gate, a non-gated community, keep it all non-gated. Don't put islands in
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of gated communities that will ruin your trail system and the opelmess between the areas. Thank
you for your letting me testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Kennedy... oh, I do have a question for you, and then I want
to just make a comment on something that you said regarding Piilani Highway. You said that the
interim period for the highway expires in 2010.
MR. KENNEDY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: How did you get that information and from whom?
MR. KENNEDY: From our resident expert who has been studying that for a number of years. He said
it's a ten-year period and it started in 2000, it was finished in 2003, and there's seven years to go
on that interim period.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And who's your resident expert?
MR. KENNEDY: Mr. Christopher.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and did that come from DOT, is there anything in writing on
that? That's the first time I've heard of that.
MR. KENNEDY: I, I do not have that information. I will be glad to get it to you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And just so you know, the Council did receive from DOT a letter,
dated January 3rd , 2006--can you believe it?--and, and they're saying that they will be meeting
with Makena Resort, Wailea Resort and Honua'ula!Wailea 670 folks to discuss improvements
needed for Piilani Highway from Kilohana Drive to Mokulele, and also that they believe that
there will be needed an additional two lanes and intersection improvements between Kilohana
and Wailea Ike Drive. And it's their position that the needed improvements should be
implemented at no cost to the State. So, I know you directed that we should do something about
it, but that is a State highway, a State responsibility, and they're saying that these developments
should be responsible for that.
MR. KENNEDY: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Okay.
MR. KENNEDY: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Ms. Nakata.

Thank you.

Further questions for the testifier?
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MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Buck Joiner, to be followed by DeGray Vanderbilt.
MR. JOINER: Aloha. Buck Joiner, resident of Maui Meadows. Thank you for being here. Today,
Council Members, you had the opportunity to drive on Buck Boulevard. I'd like to tell you a
little about that. That is that portion of Mikioi that connects Akala with Piilani Highway, one lot
long. How did that come about? I want to tell you briefly. I went to the groundbreaking
ceremony for the Piilani Highway extension and asked, "Where is the second access to Maui
Meadows?" They said, "There isn't one." I said, "There must be, it has to be." The contractor
for that expansion of Piilani Highway gave me a price and told me what he wanted. He said, "I
have to have the plans for that road by the time I get there to that point of construction, and I will
build that road for $25,000." I went to the County Council and I went to the Public Works, and
they couldn't move quick enough. The road was eventually built, $250,000, ten times the
amount that it could've been built for. The reason I bring that up is to think ahead. You have to
think ahead and act appropriately. This highway that is shown right here doesn't need to be built.
This is not going to go to Ulupalakua. It can't go to Ulupalakua. The State is not going to put it
up there. The purpose of a highway is to connect the population centers. Ulupalakua doesn't
constitute a population center. This is the only project I've ever seen to have a, have a negative
benefit cost ratio for building that highway. So that's not going anywhere. That's the end of it
right there. This is not going to be built to the way it's shown on here. Michelle, if you'll ask
me a question about it, I'll tell you later.
AUDIENCE: .. . {laughter} . ..
MR. JOINER: I know how to do this. Okay. Now, what really needs to happen, what we have to
recognize, whether you want to believe it or not, is recognize that Makena is going to be where
the population is going to be growing the most, and this road needs to come down along the
bottom and go right into Wailea. That is going to cause a tremendous problem for this project
because they don't own this road. This road is not owned and that property is not owned by
Wailea 670. The first part is owned by the State, the other part is owned by Ulupalakua. Okay.
So what that means is to move this road and have it go down here and go towards Makena, there
has to be some major land swaps and rethinking in here. This road could be made into a much
smaller one, but not like this. The point is that highways are supposed to be made to connect the
population centers, and this one needs to go, unfortunately, down to Makena. I would like to
mention that as a resident of Maui Meadows and also as the Chairman of the Kihei Traffic and
Safety Committee for a long time, and as Chairman, past Chainnan of the Maui County Traffic
Safety Committee, I always like to see interconnectivity of communities.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. JOINER: I don't like to see the dead worms that are isolated, the dead worms being the cul-de-sacs
and things like that. There needs to be some interconnectivity, and I have no problem with this,
with Maui Meadows being connected to this project. Okay, but the highway is the important
issue, and I ask you to address that carefully, ask the planners, all the people concerned. This is a
- 22-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
January 4, 2006 (Kihei)

tough, tough, tough decision, but if you don't make it now, we're really going to be in trouble
later on. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: You have to ask?
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: .. .(chuckle) . ..
MR. JOINER: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: First, I do want to tell you, Buck, that the State has said, as of
August '05, that they have no plans to construct the Piilani extension.
MR. JOINER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So that seems like just, you know, dead space-MR. JOINER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --that could be better utilized.
MR. JOINER: A road, a road needs to be there ... particularly in the layout, but it doesn't have to be to
Federal highway standards. See, this, this road allotment that goes through here is actually set up
to be to Federal standard width so that it could probably ultimately be four lanes wide. You don't
need it for that community. It's not going to Ulupalakua. All it needs to be is a little, tiny road
like some of the interconnected roads that are being shown in here. Okay, it can be a much
smaller road and you put your highway down at the bottom. And thank you for asking the next
question... (chuckle) . .. which is why it can't be built like that. If I may, sir. The reason is this
portion is owned by Ulupalakua-CHAIR CARROLL: Excuse me. Is that your question, Ms. Anderson?
MR. JOINER: Please.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Alright.
AUDIENCE: ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, proceed.
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MR. JOINER: Okay. Now, this portion of, of the road is owned by Ulupalakua Ranch. It is not owned
by Wailea 670. Is, is Ulupalakua going to develop that highway to benefit those people when
they get absolutely nothing for it? Absolutely not. There's no incentive. They're not going to
build a road there. They can't, they won't. They don't have the money, they're struggling. So
they're going to sell that piece right there to these guys. Right now they don't own it, but they're
going to because they don't have any choice. Charlie, Charlie is shaking his head. So, I ask, you
know.. .I have no idea, unless, unless the State is going to buy that and build that, and, and
you're saying that they're not. So this needs to be reconsidered, and I would like to see this road
come right down along here. I'm thinking 10 years, 20, 50 years into the future, okay, not just
for today. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Buck. You've been around a long time, so you know the
system, huh?
MR. JOINER: Twenty-five years, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I just wanted to let you know that I know you posed a question with
regards to the parks and open space at the site inspection-MR. JOINER: I did.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --and I will be asking Charlie to address that by at least breaking it down
from the 90 acres that I think are represented into what is open space and what is actual parks,
and then kind of give us an idea of that. So, I just wanted to let you know that I will ask that
question when it comes.
MR. JOINER: Okay. I appreciate that. Could I restate the question so that the people know what it was
about?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, I don't have an objection with

restating that question.

CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
MR. JOINER: Thank you. If you notice right here, this is public park and this little piece right here is
public park. Now, when Charlie gives us the figures for the total acreage, it includes much of
this open space, which is the, the light green areas which might be shrubs or whatever, but it's
not. . .it doesn't look to me like it's really a usable park area. I know that this one, for instance,
right here, this is gully. There's gully there. You can't do anything with it. It's got to be open
space. This is going to be bare rocks. And from my standpoint from parks and recreation, that's
not a usable area. So, I am concerned that the, the park area in here is minimal. And although
Charlie says that it's public use, it's pretty much out of the way for us, you know, it's more just
for the homeowners that are in there. We're not going to be able to get to it.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Buck.
MR. JOINER: So that, that was just the restating of the question that I asked at the site visit.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Anything further? Thank you, Mr. Joiner. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is DeGray Vanderbilt, to be followed by David Bergau.
MR. VANDERBILT: Thank you, Chairman Carroll and Members of the Land Use Committee. My
name is DeGray Vanderbilt, a resident of Molokai for 30 years. I'm not here in support or
against the Wailea 670 project, but I am in here ... --(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- ... for maximizing
the affordable housing. I've been a long-time advocate of equitable, affordable single-family
housing. And when I say equitable, I mean not only affordable, but also housing that is built on a
decent sized lot and it includes amenities that contribute to the quality of life needs of a growing
family. Decision makers need to keep in mind that these affordable housing units that are priced
at over a quarter of a million dollars are not starter homes, but homes that working families will
have to be content with for the rest of their lives. Affordable prices are based on a median
income, and based on this figure the County says if your family is earning 80 percent of median
income or 48,000, you can afford a house of 225,000. The developers at Wailea 670 project
seem to accept this as a fair figure. Some of the affordable housing is priced at 340,000 in this
project. I suggest that the Council consider conditioning the approval of the Wailea 670
development by having the development partnership donate 100 acres out of the 670 acres
covered by the project for the County for affordable housing. This represents only 15 percent of
the project's total area of 670 acres, only 15 percent. Earlier this year I read in The Maui News
that 20 percent of the 1,400 units would be affordable housing. Instead of the 20 percent
affordable housing requirement, have the developer contribute only 15 percent of its land for
affordable housing, then turn it over to a consortium of nonprofit housing development people,
and you will really see some fair affordable housing at reasonable prices. This is not taking of
land from the developer, it's doing what is fair. It's called balance. Right now there is no
balance on Maui island. The rich get richer and the working families keep taking steps
backward, particularly when it comes to quality of life issues.
Now I keep on going, and I'll, I'll skip over a lot of this. But the developers like to do the
affordable housing, and in most projects you'll see the market-priced lots at maybe 10,000
square feet and the affordable lots are half that or less in size. Sometimes you'll see that
the ...when the developers are starting to look at these projects, their idea of affordable is smaller
or less quality, and a lot of times you'll see bedrooms in the affordable units that are smaller than
the closets in many of the market-priced units. So, I would, I would hope that we could get as
much as we can out of this. I appreciate the fact that the developer has worked with the
community, but I think all these community groups would like to see the affordable housing
maximized.
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I have some other things that I'll skip over in there. And I guess what I wanted to say is that I've
attached a copy of The Maui News article, March 20, which appears to have been taken pretty
much verbatim from a news release project promotional package given to The Maui News by Mr.
Jencks. Mr. Jencks talks exclusively throughout the article, but doesn't mention anything about
the economic benefits of the project. And this, this was sort of unlike Mr. Jencks.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. VANDERBILT: So, I have attached an article here that was in The MaUl News also where
Mr. Jencks as President of the Chamber of Commerce or Chairman of the Board gave you guys
an "F" for economic development, which I think was very unfair to do. And he seems to be
judging your actions based on the Chamber of Commerce mission statement, and I have enclosed
that mission statement that talks about encouraging business opportunities for everyone. And I
go on, and I'm not going to take up the whole time, but I've put some attachments on there about
Mr. Jencks and Mr. Dowling, and their efforts to bury another small nonprofit TV operation that
serves all of these communities, Akaku Community Television.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. VANDERBILT: And I'll, I'll just sum it up by saying, you know, as I said, I applaud Mr. Dowling
and Mr. Jencks for their work with the schools in this community, but I think it's very unfair and
something that the Council should take into consideration when these guys use that as
justification for trashing another great community service organization that serves all the other
communities in Maui County. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Vanderbilt, why do you feel that it's relevant for this
Committee to consider Mr. Jencks' involvement with Akaku in regards to this development?
MR. VANDERBILT: Well, there was some earlier people that got up here, and, and I think they were
sincere in their comments about saying how Mr. Jencks and others have worked very closely
with this community. And, and I applaud them for that. But on the other hand, it seems that the
big guys always want everything, and to see Mr. Jencks and Mr. Dowling, who have done so
much for this community, taking it out on a little, small nonprofit like us is
unconscious able [sic], unconscious .. .I don't know how to say that word too well. But
anyway... but anyway, I just, I just think it's unfair. And if you're going to evaluate and give
them some points for the good things they do, try to balance it out, just like hopefully this
Council will do in balancing out with more affordable housing.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Further questions? None, thank you.
MR. VANDERBILT: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is David Bergau, to be followed by Diane Haynes Woodburn.
MR. BERGAU: Good evening, Chair and Council Members of the Land Use Committee. My name is
David Bergau. It's been a number of years. I may have been younger then, but that's alright. I
learn as I go. Since then, the drastic changes that occurred over time is very positive. I've had
the opportunity to see the presentation previously and consider it to be one of the best plan buildouts for our County and community. The future upgrades for our community playa big role for
our kids. The upgrading of our parks through Honua'ula will benefit everyone's family. To my
knowledge, they will have their own water source that won't use lao Aquifer's resources;
infrastructure and a treatment plant that will reuse its treated water for the median and sidewalk
grassed areas. The build-out will be for everyone's needs to enjoy. There will be a small
convenience store that the community will be able to get by walking and keeping our community
healthy. These points I have shared with you is just a trickle of a thoroughly thought out,
educated, sensible build-out. The men and women who reintegrated this project lost months
away from their family to take care of ours. I support this project for its massive care of our
resources and prized community. Thank you. My name is David Bergau and I represent
Operating Engineers - Local Union No.3.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
MR. BERGAU: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Diane Haynes Woodburn, to be followed by Ray Skelton.
MS. HAYNES WOODBURN: I'm Diane Haynes Woodburn. Thank you, Council Members, for
allowing me to testify tonight. I testified many years ago in favor of this project because I felt it
was a well-planned project and that we needed well-planned projects on Maui. I am testifying
before you again today for the same reasons. I believe that it is a good project. I believe the
developers have responded to community input. I believe that they have shown sensitivity to our
cultural needs. They have shown that they are cognizant of the environmental impacts and seem
to be working with the community to address all of the needs that we have brought up in the past,
and they have shown a readiness and a willingness to work with us. I am not unsympathetic to
some of the other problems that have been brought up tonight. I have been on Maui for 30 years.
I have four sons that are going to want to buy property someday themselves, and I understand we
need better education, we need better housing, we need some ... something to address the, the
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pricing of our, our homes. But I do believe that this is a good project, and taking a good project
off the books is not going to fix some of the ills that face us. So, I urge you to let this one pass
and have a community developed that is well planned in an area that needs good planning.
Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Ray Skelton, to be followed by Thomas Cook.
MR. SKELTON: Good evening, Council Chair and the Council Members or Committee Members. My
name is Ray Skelton. I am testifying in favor ofthis project as an individual. As Mrs. Woodburn
talked earlier, ten years ago when this came in front of the Land Use Commission on the State
end, I testified in favor of developing this land because of the fire hazard it presents to Maui
Meadows. Of course that's not a reason to have a development. It is, however, a good start.
What Mr. Jencks and the Wailea 670 people have talked about is ...been well thought of. .. well
thought, excuse me. The community has been involved in it. As one of the other testifiers talked
about earlier, it's not a perfect project. Is there such a thing as a perfect project? Possibly not.
This is a good step to make that. So, I would urge you to move this and approve it. Thank you
very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
MR. SKELTON: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Thomas Cook, to be followed by M. Todd MacFarlane.
MR. COOK: Good evening, Council, Chairman, Council Members. My name is Thomas Cook. I'm
here to give testimony as President of Maui Contractors Association. We're ... have followed
this project closely over the years and are in support of this project. I've testim ... , given
testimony before previously, both as an individual and a representative of the organization for
residential workforce housing. I feel very passionately about the need for affordable housing,
and this has a component of affordable housing. This is a large piece of property. It's a very
rocky, hilly piece of property. It's an expensive piece of property to develop. I think that this
property will generate--I'm glad, I'm impressed that the affordable housing component is
included in the property. I think that the homes that are built around a golf course and the other
parts of the build-out will benefit the community in a big way that when... the money that's
needed for the Council to be able to buy oceanfront property, for us to be able to do the
infrastructure for the community, we need to improve our tax base. And this project is going to
be over a prolonged period of time, so I think it will increase the tax base. For us, from a
personal experience, I want to share with you as far as like the high-end homes ...really
significantly. All the money comes ...the labor force. On a $5 million home, half of it is labor,
and it goes right here in the community. It doesn't leave the community. It comes in, everybody
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pays rent, they pay their truck payments, their insurance payments, they send their kids to school,
and that's all new money from off the island. So, I just want a... a perspective for the affordable
component is how do you afford a home? You have a home that's properly priced, but also you
have the jobs and an influx of money coming into the community to make a healthy economy.
And I think in the long run ... as you know, the hotels are a real boom-bust cycle. This should
have a sustainability. The apprentices that work for me now, like my son who graduated from
King Kekaulike two years ago, and his six friends that are all, are a force, in 20 years they'll be
journeymen. They'll be able to send their kids to school--not necessarily from this project, but
this type of long-term, community-based residential build-out, as opposed to just the really big
projects that are gone ... here today and gone tomorrow. So as an organization we feel that this is
going to be good for the community as a whole and the working man in a big way. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is M. Todd MacFarlane, to be followed by Eric Schaible.
MR. MacFARLANE: Good evening, Council Members. Thank you very much for the opportunity to
speak in front of you. I am testifying also as an individual who is highly in favor of this project.
What I have seen here is the result of good planning and preparation, and I think the project is
also very well designed. It meets all of the Committee's previous issues and more, and I am
about 110 percent in favor of it. One of the other ideas is the highway that goes through the
center of it--I see that Freddie Cajigal is in the back of the room, and ifthere are people here that
are interested in being road designers, he may be looking for some new employees. So there are
many opportunities for all of us here, and I think it's very good for the community and very good
for the island ofMaui. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Your name, sir?
MR. MacFARLANE: I'm sorry, Todd MacFarlane.
CHAIR CARROLL: Hearing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Eric Schaible, to be followed by John Armstrong.
MR. SCHAIBLE: Hi, my name is Eric Schaible. I'm speaking on just behalf of myself here as an
individual. I've lived in Maui for seven years. I'm 27 years old. I haven't been married for very
long, just had a baby a couple of weeks ago, and that was important for me to say because I've
been in construction for six years and I love it. I love working with my hands, I love all the
different aspects of it. And I think that there's a lot of other young people in my same boat that
love it, too, and want to keep working and want to, you know, perhaps even retire on the island
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of Maui because ... they like living here. So giving the working man on Maui job security is
important to me. And even if I myself don't get a chance to work on this project, I would be
happy for anybody else who does get a chance because I know that it will go for quite some time.
And another thing that I wanted to say was continual growth on Maui is inevitable. I think that
that's going to be true with almost anyplace in the country... that you can't stop it, whether it's
corning from the outside or it's just corning from people who have lived here for so many years
and who are having children, and they grow up and they have children, and so on and so forth.
The affordable housing is really important to me. I just happen to have just been recently given
the opportunity to get a horne through the Spencer Homes development in Waikapu, which, you
know, to me that's by the grace of God I got that opportunity, and I'm very thankful because
otherwise, you know, I can't afford a really high-priced horne. So, I think in regards to that. .. by
making people who have lived here for, you know, let's say more than a year, a high priority as
far as getting them the houses that they need for their families at a reasonable price so that we
can make, you know, the island more so about the people who live here and have lived here for
many years instead of, you know, for so much, for just people who just want to move here and
just now corning to live here.
I just wanted to say that stopping housing development will not solve the problems that our
communities face. I think if we become very offensive and in dealing with the issues we face
now and rising to the challenge of continual adaptation to the needs of the people on Maui, we
will ultimately benefit our community. And that's all I had to say.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Hearing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is John Armstrong, to be followed by Karen Olson.
CHAIR CARROLL: And after this next testifier, we are going to take a ten-minute recess.
MR. ARMSTRONG: Good evening, Committee Members. My name is John Armstrong, and I would
just like to say any of these developments that have affordable housing, even if it's a little bit, it's
a start because I'd like to own my own horne here on Maui. And if we start with a little bit, who
knows where it'll go. Thank you. I'm in favor of 670.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you. This Committee is now
going to stand in recess for ten minutes. Recess .... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

7:28 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:49 p.m.
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CHAIR CARROLL: " .(gavel). .. This Land Use Committee meeting of January 4th is now back in
session. Please be seated. We are now going to continue with public testimony. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Karen Olson, to be followed by Matthew Conmy.
CHAIR CARROLL: And please remember to state your name at the microphone.
MS. OLSON: Hi. My name is Karen Olson. I want to thank all of you for your time, but also I want to
thank Charlie Jencks and the whole group of Wailea 670 for all the time and energy they've put
into the project. I was quite amazed at the, the way that they planned it. .. that it has a
combination of the multi-family and also single-family, but also the low income proponent in it
also, 'cause that's the one that means the most to me. I'm a single mom and I raised three boys
by myself. I'm a Maui resident, my kids are Maui residents, and I want them to be able to
remain here. And to me that's very important, that they could get into a beautiful neighborhood
complex like this. I was also quite amazed with the way they were able to do a 2.1 per ratio on
the per acre, and also the drainage that they were able to do, the way that they fit in all the
different components. When I first looked at it, I was kind of a little bit dismayed by the VMX
factor because I thought, oh, I don't know if that would really be good for the area. But then I
went back to being a child and I remembered that I, when I could walk through my neighborhood
and go to the grocery store or be able to walk places really closely, and when my kids got older,
when I could let them do so. I think it's a very important part to have in the community. So, I
just want to thank everybody for the time they've done and for the wonderful project, and I
would encourage you, if you could, to do it soon so that my kids will be able to benefit from it.
So thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Ms. Nakata.

Thank you.

Any questions for the testifier?

Hearing none, thank you.

MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Matthew Conmy, to be followed by Todd MacFarlane, Jr.
Note:

Short pause.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Chair, one more time, the name?
MS. NAKATA: Matthew Conmy. The next testifier is Todd MacFarlane, Jr., to be followed by Charles
Ridings.
MR. MacFARLANE, JR.: Good evening, Chairman, Council Members. My name is Todd MacFarlane,
Jr., and I'm testifying here on behalf of myself and as an employee of Goodfellow Brothers.
First, on behalf of myself, I'm a very new resident to Maui. And as a, as a younger man, one of
my biggest struggles is the living expenses here. The rents here are higher than I've seen
anywhere else, and without an inheritance or a State lottery, I think the only chance I've got of
getting a house here on Maui is through affordable housing. And some of the things that this
project, you know, brings about is that 20 percent affordable housing. And I've seen other
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projects where it starts with that and that's it, which, you know, is good for the first round of
people that gets in there, but after that everyone's out of luck because the property values
increase so rapidly because the rest are at the areas in a wealthier neighborhood. To me, the
ten-year residence requirement isn't quite as a big deal as is the limit on growth. I think that will
drive a longer residence because people will have no reason to sell their house because they're
not going to sell a $250,000 house to move into a, you know, 2 million house next door 'cause
they won't be able to afford it. And keeping the prices lower will afford the ability for people
like me to buy a house maybe five or ten years down the road, because I know I wouldn't be able
to come close now.
And then as an employee of Goodfellow Brothers, I've been there about three weeks now. And
though I've visited Maui probably six months in the past couple of years, I've met more of the,
the real people of Maui in the three weeks that I've worked for Goodfellow Brothers than I have
with all my months combined before. That is the, the accountants in the office, the clerks in the
office, the administrators in the office, the engineers in the office; out in the field, the operating
engineers, the laborers. These are all the real people ofMaui, and these are the people that I see
as directly benefiting from the project the most, as I'm echoing what people have said before.
But, you know, 20 years of a stable job, a stable income, they know that they can bring food to
their families every night, go to the same place to work, and I think that's a tremendous benefit to
the economy. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Charles Ridings, to be followed by Joan Martin.
MR. RIDINGS: Good evening. My name is Charlie Ridings. Mr. Chair, Members of the Committee,
I'm here to talk about not whether we are pro or con regarding the, the project, but to talk about
the potential benefits relative to the affordable housing requirement that would result from the
project. Mr. Jencks talked about the affordability that they were building for people that were
between approximately 100 and 140 percent of the median family income. Let me talk to you
tonight about the people that are 50 percent or less of the median family income.
I am the Executive Director of the Ka Hale A Ke Ola Homeless Resource Center, the Hale
Makana 0 Waiale affordable rental complex, and Na Hale 0 Wainee Resource Center in
Lahaina. We have a little over 1,200 people living with us every day, including a little over 600
children. We have a waiting list of approximately 170 people, primarily families. We know that
everybody that drives by the breakwater can see that there are about 120 to 140 people that are
homeless, living over on the breakwater. And I think the most important statistic to consider is
that in the most recent census there are 4,866 households on Maui that are less than 50 percent of
the median family income. And to give you an idea what that means is that a person, a family of
three would earn about $29,000 at 50 percent of the median family income. I don't think it's
realistic right at this point in time for us to look at it and say that a person can aim for home
ownership at that level of income. So affordable rentals are really quite important. And we
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have, in our facilities we have affordable rentals as well as addressing the Issues of
homelessness.
And one of the benefits that Mr. Jencks' organization has offered as a result ofthis is to provide a
donation of a 5-acre parcel to Ka Hale A Ke Ola, which is under the, the corporate name of Maui
Economic Concerns of the Community. Basically, what we would do is to build the same
configuration facility that we have in West Maui, and that is to have a homeless resource side as
well as an affordable side. We have 24 studios, 24 two-bedrooms on the emergency transitional
side, which is a maximum of a two-year stay, and we have 30 two-bedroom units that we rent for
$550 a month on the affordable side. Now, just to put that into, into what is happening in the
community based on the Section 8 cost, a Section 8 will pay up to $1,365 a month for a two
bedroom. We're charging $550 a month for a two bedroom. And if you put that in terms of the
people making $29,000, that's a significant difference.
So what we really have is the ability. We already have the design. We've ... the way we set it up
is we have the design for the facility. As I've told Alice Lee, what we have is the ability once we
get the land, once we get the money lined up, that we can deliver the project in approximately 12
months ... from the time that we have it lined up. If this land is donated to us, then what we're
able to do is to go forward, do the subsurface investigation, the archeological inventory, and to
get things ready to go. And hopefully, we would be ready to go as far as construction by the end
of this year, with a completion date by the end of 2007. There is a real need for affordable
rentals, there is a very real need for people who are living in a homeless situation-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. RIDINGS: --and it's getting worse. You've heard me say this before, and I will say it one more
time. A community is only as strong as the weakest members of its community, and if we don't
take care of the weakest members of the community, we dilute the overall quality of the
community. And I believe that with the program that has been developed by the Administration,
specifically Alice, for the donation of land and/or money on the front end to be able to provide
the affordable housing, that we fact are taking care of the weakest members of our community.
And it will allow us to be able to proceed and to be able to take many of these people who are
living in a homeless situation or in a doubled and tripled up environment, and to be able to give
them safe and secure housing for the long term. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Mr. Molina, followed by Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good evening, Mr. Ridings. On the
5 acres that's being considered for donation you--maybe I missed it--how many units could be
put on the 5 acres, and do you have a rough estimate of how many, how much homeless or
people in need there are right here in the South Maui region?
MR. RIDINGS: Well, in answer.. .if I don't answer your question, tell me. On the configuration that
we have, it would be a duplicate of Lahaina. And there are two sides, there's the homeless
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emergency side and transitional. That would have 24 studio units, 24 two-bedroom units. So
that's 48 units. We would have 72 dorm spaces--I'm sorry, 42 dorm spaces; 32 for men, 10
separate for single women. And on the affordable side we would have 30 affordable
two-bedroom units. So basically what we'd have is a total of 78 living units and 42 dorm spaces.
It would house approximately 375 to 400 people, depending on how many people we had in a
unit. As far as the number of people down in South Maui, Mike Davis, who is our outreach
worker, is, is out in the field every day, and just to give you an idea, St. Theresa's serves every
evening somewhere between 100 and 140 meals to people. Now, they're not all homeless, but a
number of them are. The Calvary Church is serving breakfast three times a week. They're
serving it to 80 people in the morning. And we know that there are groups, there was one right
across from the VFW Hall. That's been cleared out--it's a Canadian owner--and that has been
cleared out. There were another 20 to 30 people. I would say down on this side at this point in
time we're probably talking somewhere in the vicinity of probably 100 to 175 people. But if
you're homeless and you've got a place to go, and this is what we do between Wailuku and
Lahaina. You see, if we've got space in Lahaina, we can move our people up there. Ifwe've got
space in Wailuku, we can move the people there. So it's essentially wherever the need is versus
the occupancy.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Hi, Charlie. Thanks for being here.
MR. RIDINGS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Have you seen the letter Mr. Jencks wrote to ... actually to the
Mayor in September of this year? And it, it covers a myriad of subjects based on a meeting that
they had-MR. RIDINGS: No.

answer to your question, no, I have not.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I see it wasn't cc'd to you. But in this letter he talks about,
Mr. Jencks talks about. .. --(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- So I'm wondering if, if he's referencing
your project?
MR. RIDINGS: Rather than me speculating, I'd have to ask. Charlie says yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is that it? And so the 5 acres, is this ...has, has he offered you
land in, in the light industrial, light industrial land?
MR. RIDINGS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do you know where that is?
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MR. RIDINGS: Charlie, I'd rather not guess. I'd rather have Charlie say. It's just below Tesoro, right,
and right across from Ka Ono DIu, mauka ofPiilani Highway?
MR. JENCKS (from the audience): ... {inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so is .. .is this separate from the affordable that he showed?
MR. RIDINGS: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Totally separate?
MR. RIDINGS: Yes, it's totally separate. It's very difficult, just so you'll know, it's very difficult to
build affordable rentals for people that are 50 percent or less of the median family income and
are homeless, trying to mix it in with, with market-priced houses. It just doesn't work, not just
on Maui, but anywhere.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I understand that. Thank you very much, Mr. Ridings.
MR. RIDINGS: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Ridings, good, good evening. Just to follow up on that donation,
the 5 acres ofland that's being donated-MR. RIDINGS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --had it already been donated or is it indicative of the approval of this
project?
project. And I believe--Charlie, I don't want
MR. RIDINGS: It is contingent upon the approval of
to say it wrong--it's, it's after it goes through the Council. Is that correct? Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
MR. RIDINGS: Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Joan Martin, to be followed by Dennis McLeod.
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MS. MARTIN: Good evening, Chainnan, County Council Members. Thank you for the opportunity to
testify this evening. My name is Joan Martin, and I'm testifying on behalf of the Maui Nui
Housing Task Force at the request of our Coordinator, Giovanni Rosati, who apologizes for being
unable to attend the meeting this evening.
The Maui Nui Housing Task Force supports the Wailea 670 project for the following reasons.
We want to see houses built for Maui's working families. We agree with the concept of building
one affordable unit at the same time as one market-priced unit. And we support the allocation of
affordable housing at 50 percent for those earning less than 100 percent of the median HUD
household income, and we agree with the allocation of 50 percent of the affordable housing
being allocated for those earning 101 to 140 percent of the HUD median income. We do,
however, have some concerns that we hope will be corrected by the Committee.
First, the affordable housing proposed by the project will not remain affordable in perpetuity. In
Maui we have repeatedly seen how affordable housing is eliminated over time without any
mechanism in place to maintain affordability.
Second, we are very concerned about the potential that affordable housing requirements could be
met with the provision of land to the County, even to a nonprofit which has its own restrictive
eligibility requirements. We are in a housing crisis. Our lower income and middle income
families are in crisis. We need affordable housing, including rentals, now and not the promise of
a project down the line while donated land lies vacant for years on end. I want to emphasize,
please ensure that housing is actually built as a result of the promises made by the project.
Again, thank you for the opportunity to testify in support of the project with the conditions I've
stated.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Ms. Nakata.

Thank you.

Any questions for the testifier?

Hearing none, thank you.

MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Dennis McLeod, to be followed by

Anne Schonwalter.

CHAIR CARROLL: Not here?
MS. NAKATA: Helen Anne Schonwalter, to be followed by Marta Sweeney.
MS. SCHONWALTER: Good evening. My name is Helen Anne Schonwalter. I live in Huelo. I'm an
educator and I'm also a volunteer naturalist. I'm going to make five points I think in order of
importance, with the most important one last.
As a volunteer naturalist I, I deal with .. .I deal with tourists who enjoy the Kanaio coast when
they're going out to Molokini Crater and Turtle Town, and the captain mentions that the Prince
Resort, the Maui Prince Hotel was named The Last Resort. And for me and for many of the
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visitors, we have a sigh of relief knowing that our eyes are now going to be able to rest upon the
natural beauty which is what attracted us here in the first place.
And so, one, I'm saying that because tourism's figures in Maui County are doing quite well and
continue to outpace even the other islands, we need to consider that tourists are here to see the
viewscape. And among the people that I interact with in other capacities, I'm noticing that there
are refugees from Oahu who come here for retreats. Many of them are coming because Oahu, as
we know, has been overdeveloped and has become a rather unlivable place for the most part, and
I don't want to see that happen here in Maui. I myself have had to leave two areas on the
mainland due to overdevelopment and promises that were made and not kept regarding
community action plans. And so I was forced to leave because my area became unlivable.
My second point is that I've been following the water, excuse me, the water issues, and I want to
say my hat's off to our Mayor, Alan Arakawa, who is at least attempting to address the real issues
of the water and whether we have in fact the water that is being allocated for this project. I'm
finding those figures are incompatible. I'm really very dubious about where this water is coming
from. Five years ago on a tour of Ulupalakua at Tedeschi Winery, I was shocked to find out that
the aquifer was already brackish. This is five years ago, and I don't see that aquifer being
replenished. So, I would like to find out more in an EIS, an Environmental Impact Statement,
real numbers of where this water is coming from and how it will remain potable.
My third issue, I believe I'm counting correctly, is the imbalance. I know we're all saying
affordable housing, and I, I appreciate that Charlie Jencks is attempting to address the issue of
affordable housing. But I don't see those figures as being affordable either now or in the future.
And what I see, which I've seen in St. Croix and other places where tourism, sorry, where this
kind of development has taken place, is that people who work in the service industry, and let's
say beyond development, beyond construction, beyond the infrastructure building, what is going
to be the kinds of jobs that local people will be commuting to here?
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. SCHONWALTER: That's the point, sorry. My last point then is the most important, and I wanted
to just reiterate. That means that local people will have to be bussed into these jobs because they
can't afford to live there. This is the point that I want to make, that we need an amendment to
the Community Plan. It is outdated. The last EIS was written in 1988, and the infrastructure has
been impounded, sorry, impacted in a very negative way, and we're not doing the research that's
necessary to move ahead with this project. Whether it's smart growth or not, we need those
statistics. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Ms. Nakata.

Thank you.

Any questions for the testifier?

Hearing none, thank you.

MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Marta Sweeney, to be followed by Lucienne deNaie.
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MS. SWEENEY: Hello, Honorable Council Members. Thank you for allowing me to testify. My name
is Marta Sweeney, and I've lived and worked in Maui for 14 years. I'm here today to voice my
opposition to the proposed development of Wailea 670. I'm concerned about the ocean health,
water, traffic issues that will affect Maui's environment and its citizens. I was here last year
testifying against the development in Makena, and I, I want to just say again I, I was one of many
that surveyed a lot of beachgoers at various beach sites. And I, I surveyed hundreds of locals
and, and visitors alike, and each one of them expressed their real concern for the
overdevelopment of Maui. And a lot of them were saying, "Oh, my God, this is turning into
another, you know, California, Disneyland kind of situation." And so a lot of them really, you
know, the questionnaire was, you know, what, what's the plan for Maui's future? What would
you like to see happen to Maui or not happen in this case? And they were saying, "Please leave
Maui's last remaining south side, South Maui, pristine and wild and beautiful just the way it is."
And so I'm here today on behalf ofthose hundreds of people that cannot voice their concerns, to
keep Maui the way it is. You know, I know that's like naive and, you know, like in a room full of
people that really want to develop it, but we've got to remember that this is what makes Maui
beautiful is, you know, the pristine beauty of it.
Lastly, in closing I'd like to ask that the County Council require the developer to seek an updated
Community Plan Amendment, 'cause it's my understanding that the last complete environmental
review for this project was actually in 1988. So if you could please, you know, look into that, I'd
appreciate that. And I thank you for, for your attention to this matter. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members, any questions? Ms. Anderson.
MS. SWEENEY: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Marta, thank you for coming. You said you did a survey last year.
MS. SWEENEY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Where did you do that survey?
MS. SWEENEY: Well, we did it over in Makena, Big Beach, and then we were down over in the Polo
Beach area, and also Kamaole I,
and III. So we, we concentrated our survey on South Maui
because this is the area that was going to be affected by the proposed development, and so really
that's where we concentrated.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: When you, when you were at Makena...
MS. SWEENEY: Db-huh.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: " .did you notice what was the level of impact at Makena as far as
the amount of parking that was available?
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MS. SWEENEY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And-MS. SWEENEY: Yeah, the parking was-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm concerned about-MS. SWEENEY: I, 1-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --the impact to the beach.
MS. SWEENEY: Yes, exactly. There .. .if you go to Makena these days, you have to really circle
around many times. If you're lucky, there will be an opening. But really it overflows onto
the ... over on the dirt roadside, you know, the mauka side. And so a lot of people were
like ... oh, my gosh, is this the way it's going to, you know, keep happening? So anyway, I just
want to say that a lot of people were definitely opposed to more development. They wanted to
keep it the way it was, because they've seen what's happened over Kaanapali and over that way,
and they're like really in disbelief. And these are people that corne to Maui every year, and
they're just, just amazed at the growth. And they're saddened too, as, as well as the locals.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Marta.
MS. SWEENEY: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for the testifier? Hearing none, Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Lucienne deNaie, to be followed by Anthony Carter.
MS. deNAIE: Thank you very much. Thanks for being here and giving up your evening. My name is
Lucienne deNaie.
testifying on behalf of Maui Tomorrow; I serve as Vice-Chair.
going
to tum in written comments. But I think that we really need to look at the fact that this is
primarily a resort community, and no one's really been mentioning this. So the kind of planning
we're talking, there's a lot of nice goodies being offered, there's a lot of consultations.
Mr. Jencks has done a very good job of outreaching. He's met with our Board of Directors, he's
met with other organizations. We still have some great concerns, like some of the other folks
you've heard today. This plan still has more questions than answers for us. As a resort
community, is part of it going to be gated, is any of it going to be gated? It used to be all gated,
now it's not gated. We'd like to know that. Also, you know, a project was inherited here by
Mr. Jencks and his associates that had very substandard reviews of like the native plant areas, of
the cultural sites, even really probably of some of the infrastructure needs. Is that infonnation
really going to be at a better level of what we're getting now? We hope so. This is a very, very
special area in tenns of native plant habitat, and it really deserves actually to be a preserve and a
portion of it that's not developed. Unfortunately, that's planned for housing and a golf course
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right now. And I really think that, you know, if somebody want, wants to give us a gift package,
that would be the gift package that we would want to see presented.
We also have heard from many folks in the audience. Obviously, this would be a great project
for the construction industry, for the real estate industry, for people whose businesses would be
affected by this. But, you know, what are we trading off? I mean there's, there's all these
promises that have been made in the past about previous areas of South Maui. The Kihei Civic
Plan awarded thousands of acres of entitlements to people whose land essentially was
agricultural. And the promises were that we'd have four little villages in Kihei; that each would
have a flavor; that there would be beautiful views left open in Wailea; it would have its own tram
system; it wouldn't have any traffic problems; Makena would have big cultural preserves; the
coastal views would be unobstructed. I don't think we've ended up with any of that, yet the
entitlements were given. The people have built on the land. So most of you folks will not be
here probably by the time all of this gets resolved. We need to make sure that we do something
that is more compatible with this land here. It's steep, rugged, it is expensive to build on.
Maybe we should build less on it and maybe it should be more for Maui's people. We really
need to have some answers.
Many of the questions that were brought up here tonight, we respectfully ask this body to ask the
developer and their associates to do an actual clean start, Community Plan Amendment. Start
with the conditions we have now with this project. Don't cobble together all the past approvals
which are for a series of different projects. We're not even sure whether there's 20 percent or
25 percent affordable housing here, or where it's going to go. Will it be mixed in, will it be
separate? It, it would just be very nice. Will it be affordable for very long? These are all
questions that really should be answered in detail, and you're the guys to get the answers.
So, I applaud you in your work. I will be submitting more detailed comments especially about
the cultural sites because this area deserves-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
your patience

MS. deNAIE: --increased scrutiny in that way. And thank you very
here.

being

AUDIENCE: ., .(applause) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for coming, Lucienne.
archeological studies that have been done so far on this project?

Have you reviewed the

MS. deNAIE: I have. I don't have the very most recent Preservation Plan. I understand that there is a
Preservation Plan that's being reviewed and commented on by the State Historic Preservation,
but I, I haven't seen that.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And neither have we.
MS. deNAIE: Oh, okay. Well, then maybe I'm not behind. But I, I have read the, the previous reports,
and I'm a little concerned because the first two surveys, which were not on Mr. Jencks' watch,
but, you know, the previous owners, didn't even find one site, even though seven had already
been reported by a survey team that laid out the route of the Piilani Highway in 1972. They
found seven sites. Wailea 670 sent back their people in '79 and '88. They didn't find one. And
finally, the new bunch of surveys took place over a three-week period in 2000, and they did
locate 24 sites. But, you know, it's important to realize that what's being preserved may only be
the tip of the iceberg, and there could be lots more hidden in this very rough terrain, as has been
shown on the Dowling project in Makena. Many more sites were discovered once the new team
was sent in. I hope that answers your question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I was just wondering if you knew, I guess maybe you don't,
but at one point only 28 percent of the land had been inventoried or surveyed. And so-MS. deNAIE: Yes, they're concentrating only on one end of the land, and they're claiming that there are
no other sites in the northern-most part of the land. I can't give an opinion on that 'cause I
haven't walked the land. Mr. Jencks has offered us a site visit, myself, Ed Lindsey and other
people who are interested. We look forward to that and ... can perhaps, you know, give 'em our
insights. We're pretty good at finding sites.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, good. Thank you very much.
MS. deNAIE: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Hearing none, Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Anthony Carter, to be followed by Kenneth Jencks.
MR. CARTER: Good evening. My name is Anthony Carter, and I really appreciate the opportunity to
testify tonight. A bit of history 'cause I, I've still got a bit of an accent, so I'm told. I've lived
here most of my life. I first came to the islands 1969, fell in love with Maui in 1972, and still
hanging out here.
But I'm speaking tonight in favor of this project. I'm speaking as an individual, and most
importantly, I'm speaking as a parent of two adult children, one of who is on Maui, the other
who, unfortunately, like so many of my neighbors' children, have left. The family, the ohana, it's
gone, it's fragmented. And an opportunity to be involved in a project like this--not me
personally--but I mean everyone that I'm looking at now, to be involved in this project which
has, offers so much... that's never been put together before. I've seen so many as ill-conceived
projects on West Maui and, and other places, half-baked projects which promise the, the world,
and usually the developer seems to build the expensive homes and then runs out of money to do
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the affordable homes. This project, I believe, goes far beyond anything I've ever seen before
being offered on Maui. And for selfish reasons, I would like my son to come back and have a
chance to actually maybe get a house here. You know, there's a possibility. And that's, that's
what made me come to the islands and work hard. I thought, well, maybe I could make a go of it
here.
But on another note, this project--I've been listening to earlier testimony--it's, it's a shame but
it's a fact of life, no one is ever going to agree. There is no such thing as a perfect project. It's
always going to inconvenience someone. But this, I think, would be a fantastic way for you to
write the history of this new millennium here on Maui. Let's, let's put differences aside, let's
think of the future of my family, my neighbors' families. I don't know. We talk about a plant
that is endangered. And don't get me wrong, you know, I understand that extinction is forever.
But I think the family unit on Maui is actually becoming an endangered species, and that's all
I've got to say about that. Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: I do.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Anthony, do you know what the market-priced housing is going to
be sold for?
MR. CARTER: No. I, I dread to think. I have not been able to keep up with prices, they're insane.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: For this project, I'm asking.
MR. CARTER: No-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You don't know?
MR. CARTER: I don't know what the market is.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So-MR. CARTER: It, it goes up faster than, you know.. .I mean I, I don't know what my place is worth.
All I know is that whatever ridiculous sum. If my place is worth a million dollars and this is my
funny, little Haiku property, it doesn't really matter. Where am I, what am I going to buy? I
mean it's scary...market-priced houses. I'm more interested in the opportunity, however slim,
for maybe one of my kids--not my daughter, she's, she's okay, she got lucky--but my, my son to
have the opportunity to actually have a chance to do what I did here and actually make a go of it.
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I'm thinking of all my friends and neighbors. I've lived 25 years in, in my community, and half
the kids have gone and never, never corne back.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: So you're hoping your son could get one of the affordable units?
MR. CARTER: Yeah. But I'm hoping that you can set the tone for, for this project to be a start of many
such projects. Relatively low density. I was lucky enough to see an aerial view of this area. My
daughter works at the Maui Prince. You know, this, this whole place, it's, it's not overbuilt, in
my humble opinion. It's actually quite difficult to see the Maui Prince. It's ... there's, there's a
ton of scrub. This, this ... you couldn't give the stuff away when I first came here.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Do you mind if I ask what you do for a living?
MR. CARTER: I build houses.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. CARTER: I built houses on Molokai for Hawaiian Homes. I built Hawaiian Homes for the
Waiehu Kou first project. I built homes for Al Covic. Low-income homes for, for people ...not
for the tourists, for the families that live here.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
MR. CARTER: Yeah, you're welcome.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
MR. CARTER: Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is ... Kenneth Jencks, to be followed by Dottie Hughes.
MR. K. JENCKS: Good evening. Thank you very much for being here. I appreciate your time and
effort. I just want to point out a couple of things here. I have worked in the planning profession
for 20 years, and I do come with a certain amount of experience and seeing a lot of proj ects come
across the boards, not only here on Maui, but on the mainland. This is the very first time I've
ever testified for a project personally, and I am testifying as an individual. Charlie Jencks is my
brother, and I love him as a brother, but I also admire, admire him as a professional.
This project does many good things for Maui. It's consistent with the Community Plan. He's
responded to community concerns, he's met with all the local groups. He's tried diligently to
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accommodate their wishes and needs. This is going to provide ... housing. It's going to help
contribute monies to our parks, our much-needed school systems.
One thing I want to say is we need to keep Maui moving forward and not close the doors to the
future, and I'm not talking about only the people that live here now. I'm talking about people
that are yet to corne, 'cause we all carne here at one time. So we, we need to keep it open for the
future residents of Maui, not just the ones who live here now. And the residents of Maui are
made up of a wide range of incomes, both low income and high income. I work two jobs; my
wife works one job. We finally saved enough to buy a home. We're very proud of it. Maybe I'll
find an opportunity to live down here one day, maybe you will. The opportunity is there for all
of us to enjoy what Maui has to offer.
So all I can say is I vote, and please support this project. It's good for Maui's future. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: What's your name, please?
MR. K. JENCKS: I'm sorry, Kenneth Jencks.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions, further questions? Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Dottie Hughes, to be followed by Ryan Nelson.
MS. HUGHES: Thank you for inviting me. My name is Dottie Hughes. I'm a widowed retiree, and
I'm speaking on behalf of myself. I have lived... bom in Minnesota, lived and retired in Florida,
and at the death of my husband my two daughters said, get over here, mother. So, I'm just so
happy to be here. But I have seen a lot of living in my day, and I've seen a lot of family living,
and you wonder what makes them tick and what doesn't. And I went through Celebration a
couple of times. I don't know if you're familiar with Celebration. It's the housing development
that Walt Disney conspired. He spent many, many years trying to decide what makes a
community. And he built it near Orlando, not near Disney World, but it's in Orlando. And when
I looked at this project I thought, umm, that's somewhat like Celebration, where it's family
living, it's a little downtown area where people can walk to the library, walk to the ice cream
store--the ice cream store was a big place to be--and a few shops and bicycle paths and walking
paths. And people fight to get into Celebration. And I thought here we are with this plan which
is going to be so good for family living on Maui, and it's ... we're missing that now. And so I
hope you'll give this project a real thumbs up. Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Hearing none, Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Ryan Nelson, to be followed by Pat Borge.
MR. NELSON: Good evening. My name is Ryan Nelson. I want to thank you for the opportunity to
express ourselves here. First off, I'm 26 years old and I've lived here for about 11 years. And
ever since I was 15, I've thought about the future and trying to think of where I'm going to live,
what I'm going to do. Fortunately, I have a really good job right now. Unfortunately, it doesn't
pay enough to pay mortgage on a house above $130,000. So it's really difficult to find a house
for that price. For this project, I am pro this project for the reason that it provides low-income
housing, and it's time for Maui to imua, and that's all I have to say.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Pat Borge, to be followed by Clarence Tavares.
MR. BORGE: Is everybody awake? Okay. You guys didn't vote yet, did you, on the issue? Okay. You
know, Mr. Jencks here is a swell guy, he's got a good plan. But it's like he's giving you a big
Christmas present here and said, here, this is what I got, but I can give you this, I can give you
that, and I can give you that. But you, our Council people, are elected by the people of Maui. I
born and raised here. I live here all my life. Hey, there's nothing wrong with this project, but
Maui is not ready for this. Where are all these people going to go? To get off of Maui you gotta
go all the way to Kahului, one-way in and one-way out. When was the last time you've been
down to Makena, Big Beach where there's no parking? Our natural area reserve being destroyed
every day. Where are all these people going to go? Affordable housing. I got nephews living
with their mothers, they're 40 years old. They, they cannot. .. this been going on for years. How
can you tell a developer to offer affordable housing? You tell them about the affordable housing
and how much affordable housing we need, not they dictate to you. That's why you are the
elected officials. This project should be on hold until we get our roads, we get a high school in
Kihei, we get a medical hospital in Kihei--all those things gotta be taken care of. This is a
massive project. And you're talking about the future of Maui and, and this is--hey, it's a good
plan and... but Maui's not ready for this. I'm sorry, Mr. Jencks, Maui is not ready for this. Our
natural area reserve, our resources have been destroyed because we have too much people, and
the County and the State is not taking care of those resources. And until you guys can take care
of that, then let's talk about a development as this size. I mean this is, this is massive, you know,
and there's a lot of people going to be living there. And you think about it, where are ...
--(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- ... stuck in traffic at Dairy Road for hours. Used to take us 20 minutes
to get to Makawao. What's happening here? You guys, you know...hey, jobs, I used to work
construction. I got out of construction because I believed that I was destroying the island, and I
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got me another job in tourism, okay. There's other jobs, it's not all construction. And I bet you
half of the guys who carne up here and said, "Oh, someday I want to live there", I bet you any
money they won't get a house in here. No way. I mean these developers corne out here to make
money, bottom line. And I worked with a lot of developers, and I've been corning to public
hearings till 1980s, and I've seen Maui .. .look the problems we have today. Too many promises
and nobody fulfill those promises. And that's why you guys gotta watch, and that's why you
guys are the elected officials, and I hope you guys make the right decision. And thank you very
much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any...
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: One moment, please.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Say your name again.
MR. BORGE: My name is Pat Borge. . .. (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: ... (chuckle) . .. Pat.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Thank you. Pat, you run Makena Stables, yeah?
MR. BORGE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you're down in that area. And, and I do have a concern on the
impact this large of a development, along with Makena Resort, is gonna have to the natural
reserve area and the Makena Beach. And ... so can you give us some idea of what you see down
there right now as far as the impact on that area?
MR. BORGE: Well, for, for instance, we had a...we had a situation, a tourist got stung with a, with a
jellyfish out at one of the fish (inaudible). She had to be rescued by helicopter. The two fire
trucks carne in, they couldn't turn around. We had to open up some gates down at the stables to
get the fire trucks to turn around. Now, if there was another incident where the two fire trucks
had to get out of there, it would have been a disaster. The ambulance ... there was no, there was
no--it's just, it's just crazy out there right now. And you people gotta go down there and see this.
And with this amount of people corning in here, I mean it's crazy, it's just crazy. There's no .. .I
mean it just. .. and, and it's a natural area reserve, you know. That's why I'm so upset with the
State because they're not doing their job in protecting that area. But that, that road issue, I want
to discuss later with Michelle here, is that with this size of a development, even the one that's
going on in Wailea right now and the Dowling project corning up, you've gotta think how many,
how much people are these, you know. And they cannot say that there's no impact. There is an
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impact on our lifestyle, and, and we gotta deal with it, not, not those guys building that. It's, it's
the people that live here that drive these highways every day, that goes to the beach every day.
Those are the people that gotta deal, deal with this stuff, you know. And it's not just about
affordable housing or the Hawaiian issue. There's other people that live here, that born and
raised here, three, four generations that have a right to live a good life. And to be stuck in traffic
all day, you know, that kind of stuff, you know, and that becomes a social issue. How you
think--hey, you guys, someday I would like to take some of you people with me and go talk to
the local guys. Hey, see how they feel about this kind. And construction workers, they feel the
same way I do. You know, sometimes you guys gotta draw the line and say hey, I'm sorry. You
know, like your mother used to say, nuff already, ah, or you get one slap in the back of the head.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Clarence Tavares, to be followed by Marion Haller.
MR. TAVARES: Aloha... .(chuckle) . .. My name is Clarence Tavares. I think nobody know or most
of the people don't know my right name, but it's Clarence Tavares, and everybody been calling
me Sonny Vick. See, Charlie's laughing already.... (chuckle) . ..
Well, anyway, everybody is .. .look like for the project, but this old-timer, I'm against the project
because I'm a road man, I'm a road man, and I like to see the, the roads before anything go
through. You get the project going on and you'll be hauling and before the ... you know the road
is all teared up and everything and nobody can get in, nobody can get out. I look at the traffic
today and I wonder how we going to get in ... or if there's any emergency, where is the
emergency going out of here? Nobody thought and think about the only outlet we got there is by
Suda Store, and no other place. There is, but nobody seems to think about
We've got a
government easement from Keawekapu to Kamaole. We've been trying to get a few guys and
look into but it never came out. But looking at this project we've been, Charlie been down at
Makena. I've been at Makena for 20 years and I've seen a lot of changes. And I told Charlie I
think we're going too much overboard with, with this already. And I just say that. . .let's hope
for the best, but keep in mind our alanui and water, our water. I don't know, Charlie said he got
water, but I don't know where the water coming from. No rain all this time. Well, thank you
very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Tavares, thank you for coming and, and waiting so long for
your tum. You were talking about a government easement. Could you tell me, were you talking
about the old Ulupalakua Road?
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MR. TAVARES: No, Kamaole. Kamaole from Keawekapu ... that new school, all the way up
to ... through the Thompson's Ranch, right to the forest.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And, and that's a government road?
MR. TAVARES: I think that's a government. .. yeah, that's a government easement. I know because I,
I've been working for the ranch for 12 Yz years, and that's where the water line used to come
from Kula to supply Kihei people before.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and was that a roadway at one time that was used?
MR. TAVARES: That was the old government easement that Kihei people and Charlie Thompson used
to use the road, the military used to use the road. But then after that they started to clamp down,
they closed the gates, locked the walls and everything. So I've been, I've been checking around,
but somebody is trying to ... they don't want, they don't want nobody getting there. But that's a
government easement. There's lots more yet. But we need something to ... for an emergency-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. TAVARES: --we need something.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: We need an escape route.
MR. TAVARES: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MR. TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Hearing none, Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA:

next testifier is Marion Haller, to be followed by Kimokeo Kapahulehua.

MS. HALLER: Good evening. Thank you. I'll try to keep my comments brief, like my notes .
. . .(chuckle) . .. I just want to .. .I commend you. This is going to be really tough. I'm listening
to all this testimony and how hard it is to make these decisions. So, I'm going to keep my
comments to the issue of affordable housing.
My primary concern is the issue of keeping affordable housing in perpetuity. The fact that this is
not addressed here is a concern to me. And it's my understanding that several of you attended a
recent conference on affordable housing on Oahu and had the opportunity to learn about different
ways that different communities around the country manage keeping affordable housing in
perpetuity. And if that's a consideration that you're going to try to act on, I would hope that
projects like this and other projects that you consider, that you build something in to have these
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units that you designate as affordable housing, that they go into a perpetuity pool. So if you can
build in a caveat that says, okay, give the County two years to come up with a way to structure,
whether it's a land trust or whatever you're going to think of, to decide whether to do that and
have a separate unit manage those housing units; that any units that you approve at this point be
allocated to go into that land trust; that you not let two years go by and these wonderful--this,
this could be 450 affordable housing units. This is a big amount. And if these go back on the
market, I'm a realtor Up country, and I know if you put these back on the market five or ten years
from now, whoever buys them just won the lottery. We know this. And what we need here is
housing units that are affordable, that stay that way for a long period oftime, and there's ways to
do that. So, I wanted to make that pitch.
I also wanted to suggest that if you consider land donation as part of this project, that you not do
that in lieu of affordable housing in the area. I do think most of these houses and the prices
they're going to go at are going to be second homes to very wealthy people. The fact that you
can walk to the ice cream store is very nice, but those people aren't there to do that. There will
be many empty houses. So the affordable housing units are going to be the community... so to,
to make sure that they're part of this community and that they fit in.
I. . .it's a hard question decision, but I say build here rather than further down in Makena. So
that would be my vote. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Say your name, please.
MS. HALLER: My apologies. Marion Haller.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Haller?
MS. HALLER: Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: Seeing none, Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Kimokeo Kapahulehua, followed by Volker Weiss.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Aloha, Council Members, Chairman Carroll. Mahalo for being here. I want to
just tell you that. .. my name is Kimo Kapahulehua. I'm on the cultural team of Honua'ula,
myself, Hokulani Padilla-Holt [sic], and Clifford Naole. We've been on this project for a number
of years. It was our recommendation to the owners to switch off from Wailea 670 to Honua'ula
in bringing the kaona or the deep hidden of this property, or the ahupua'a. We have definitely
worked with the archeological, Aki Sino to, about all the sites that are found on the property, and
looking for more sites. We want to tell you, I personally myself have walked the ravines with
Mr. Charlie Jencks, walked all around the property. The ... you show on the archeological
findings, on there we had made the recommendation to them about putting buffer zones and
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looking at more sites. As you can see that. .. as brought up Lucienne deNaie, that there was a lot
of sites on one side and there was none on the other side. We, Hawaiians, look at our ahupua' a
called ko 'olau and kona, the wet side. This part of Honua'ula is a small portion of our ahupua'a
called Honua 'ula from the mauka to makai or makai to mauka. The most significant thing about
us is that there's always a kaona. The kaona, you should know, is a deep hidden meaning of the
Hawaiian words, Hawaiian letters, Hawaiian chants, songs. All of this have a deep meaning. In
this part of Honua'ula you can find that we do not have a heiau like Piilani out in Hana. You do
not have a heiau like Pu 'ukohola on the Big Island. This is a harsh area. So the findings are very
small purely because Honua 'ula ahupua' a was a passage from the ocean to the mountain or the
mountain to the ocean. So the villages that we find or any home is very, very small sites. The
most active part about our ahupua' a on Honua 'ula is the passing between the mountain and the
ocean and the ocean and the mountain. Because of its harsh area, if we go back in deep, in the
ancient time, the only thing that we would probably have on Honua 'ula is uala. We don't have
any evidence of refrigeration of the uala or the sweet potato.
The owner of the property, the developer Charlie Jencks, have worked with all the Hawaiian
concerns about the area, spiritually and culturally. We continue to look for more things and
continue to work with the concerns with that, and we feel that-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: --the owners have been very up and honest with us.
I want to talk to you about our native plants. The most plant that is known in this area is called
wiliwili. The most beautiful wiliwili forest is in this area. The other area would be out at. .. on
the west side. In the last Celebration of Canoe, the last four Celebration of Canoes we had
offered the wiliwili wood to the canoe carvers that came from all different parts of the Pacific to
use it for their ama. We had ceremonies up there, we cut the trees down there, we made it dry
and used it for the amas for the Celebration of Canoe on Maui, and it's still available for them.
Our wiliwili forest does not live on for 200 years. It has a life expectancy, this tree. So this tree
will live and die, live and die, and then you need to-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: --know when to use the tree and when to use the seed. We are collecting seeds
up there because the wiliwili tree are threatened by the invasive wasp that we have on the island,
and because that reason, this is one of the areas that we are going to collect as many wiliwili
seeds and to freeze and also to grow more wiliwili trees to put on the island.
CHAIR CARROLL: You can wrap 'em up?
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: So, I want to just tell you that culturally we've been working really hard with
the owners for a number of years, and continuously address our concerns, and they will be
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addressing more if we have any. And I want to tell you that we do support this project, and we
thank you so much. Mahalo.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Hearing none-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Earlier we had a testifier at the ... site inspection that talked
about the nehe plant.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Is that something that you're aware of and have discussed with anybody,
including Mr. Jencks?
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Yeah. We have discussed with Lee Altenberg, and Lee Altenberg is one of our
people that we had given permission to come up there and look at the plants. And Lee Altenberg
is an educator and a gene study of the plant, yeah. The nehe plant is not one of the most
prevailing plants up there. We have other plants up there, like the awikiwiki, we have the naio,
and things like that. These plants are scattered throughout the property. They're not rare and
endangered. We had talked to U.S. Fish and Wildlife that the awikiwiki was a potential to be
endangered, it was a Class "C". So we did work with them about getting more awikiwiki plant,
worked and plant more. So we have propagated awikiwiki. The nehe plant we didn't do, yeah.
The nehe plant we didn't do, and that was not on the list, you know, according to U.S. Fish and
Wildlife.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Have you folks done a report, Kimokeo, as far as what you folks have
done with your findings, cultural, historical, you know, sites, plants, etcetera?
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Just the reports that we have
the archeological person, and we haven't
found anything more than what they've found. And also with the flora and fauna person that
they've hired, we worked with that particular person.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And that's Mr. Aki Sinoto, and I think you mentioned that earlier.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Yeah, he's the archeological person.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay, great. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: You're very welcome.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
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MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Thank you, mahalo.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Volker Weiss, to be followed by Marty Quill.
MR. WEISS: Good evening, everybody. My name is Volker Weiss. I'm obviously not from this island,
but I'm from this planet, and there's a lot of people here talking tonight about Hawaiian and also
other people that are here. I have to say I'm very proud to be here. I married someone, she is
here 23 years. I came to open the Grand Wailea. I would never take the right of saying I'm
Hawaiian--I will never be and I know that. But I do think from living on this planet and
anywhere else in the world, it is not right to say that this island cannot grow. I do believe that we
have growth all over the planet. The world population is growing every ten years. They say it's
doubling. I think just blocking this out to certain people, this beautiful island, is not right. So, I
do support this project, and I also want to say something. I had to find a profession that actually
makes it possible for me to live here. So, I'm one of these bad guys, I'm called a realtor. Don't
hit me, don't kill me. But what I also found out. . .I do set a lot of open houses, and the
perception from these people that most of us live from in the tourism branch is that the
community is leveled, like Kihei, Wailea, Makena. It seems that people's perception who are
visiting here are putting Makena on the top. I do feel that this project, how Charlie laid it out and
how it's looked at by the community right now, is that this could be in the mixed use. How it's
explained, may be a bonding piece between these three pieces how the visitors look at us. I don't
think it's right that only the working community is living in Kihei. They should be having access
to all the other communities also, especially since we're all in one zip code, and I do hope it
stays like that. Having said that, I do feel that all those categories we are talking about on Maui,
affordable housing, but also the luxury end, which I focus on selling--sad to say, but that's what
it is just because it makes the most money, and I try to be the best in my job as I can. I do think
that every part in, yeah, housing is needed on Maui. The people who are coming and buying
these luxury homes, they often cannot buy what they want. And I do believe if there would be a
chance of any kind of housing, that would also be a way of maybe opening up opportunities in
other areas where today these people have to buy because there's nothing else available. So
generally, I think that a long-term project like this one has been announced will be beneficial for
this community in any way.
Small town concepts. From traveling a lot and what I have seen, this is something that is very
good in Europe, and it's all the new parts actually in this world. And I lived in China and I have
seen this, like I said, in Europe and also in Africa, mixed use where you do have the opportunity
to go shopping, you find a little ice cream store that somebody mentioned earlier. You may find
that little Ooka's that everybody of us is crying after, and I did like that supermarket a lot. These
things should not be vanishing. And with a project like this, I do believe they have a chance of
coming back to us, and this is what we all wanted.
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MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. WEISS: It has made headlines in the newspaper, and I do think that this is an opportunity for these
little stores to come back to us. So for the long-term effort that has been explained over here, I
do think that this is an excellent project, and it should be supported by all of us. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL:
Ms. Nakata.

Thank you.

Any questions for the testifier?

Hearing none, thank you.

MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Marty Quill, to be followed by Joshua Circle-Woodburn.
MR. QUILL: Good evening, Committee Members. Thank you for your time tonight. My name is
Marty Quill and I'm here tonight as an individual. I have two brief points. I ask you to support
Wailea 670's request to bring their zoning into compliance with your Community Plan. I hope
that as you decide your conditions of approval that you will please remember that we should deal
with all landowners, regardless of who they are, in the same fair and reasonable manner that we
would apply to everyone. And you would want this if, if this was your property.
I have known--on a second point, I have known Charlie Jencks for 11 years and served on a
nonprofit board with him for many years. He is very fair, extremely community conscious, spent
ten years working for the County, and has, along with his associates, done an exemplary job of
presenting to you a commendable plan for you to consider. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

sorry, sir, I didn't hear your last name.

MR. QUILL: Quill, Q-U-I-L-L.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Joshua Circle-Woodburn, to be followed by Bryan Maxwell.
MR. CIRCLE-WOODBURN: Aloha, good evening. My name is Joshua Circle-Woodburn, and I'm
here speaking on behalf of myself in favor of this project. Many people tonight and earlier today
spoke about their concern for their kids and grandkids finding homes and being able to come
back here and live here, and I am one of those children. I was born and raised here and was
- 53-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
January 4, 2006 (Kihei)

fortunate enough to have the opportunity to go to college on the mainland. And now that I've
graduated and returned home, and even as a working professional I'm forced to live at home,
which is not a bad thing necessarily, but it would be nice to be able to get my own place at some
point. And whether it's due to rental prices or property prices, you know, it's just, you know, that
I have to wind up living at home. And I think it's, it's therefore important that a project of this
nature that takes into ... and into consideration affordable homes and culture and community and
mixed use, and it's not very often that a project like this comes along. And I, and I think that it's
time for projects like this to be approved and for Maui to start taking that next step.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Ms. Nakata.

Thank you.

Any questions for the testifier?

Hearing none, thank you.

AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Bryan Maxwell, to be followed by Dave Williams.
MR. MAXWELL: Good evening. I guess we're running pretty late, but I'm Bryan Maxwell from
Maxwell Design Group. We're landscape architects and planners here in Kihei. And we've been
involved with many projects throughout Maui and on other islands, and we really feel this
project is exceptional compared to a lot of other projects that have gone on the boards. I just
want to talk on behalf of many professionals, you know, landscape architects, architects,
engineers, structural engineers, electrical engineers--kind of the crew that before things are built
are going to be working on this kind of project. And this is just the beginning phase of many
little projects throughout the years. And basically, you can really make each area look so nice.
And one of the other things that was brought up is about native plants and stuff. As a landscape
architect, it's, it's been about ten years or so that we, we finally got to be able to grow native
plants, the, the nurseries. So basically, in most of our designs we integrate native plants in it.
And I think Charlie will be utilizing this kind of, you know, all the plants with (inaudible), and
you see it along the highways already. So, I think that this kind ofproject you can utilize that.
and this would give
Another point is we have a bunch of young landscape architects at our
them a great opportunity to get housing, you know, and that's always been our big concern, you
know. Also, and I've got all these guys coming in and it's .. .I just look around and going, gosh,
there's no housing and stuff. And this is one of many projects that are on the boards as well as
being built right now. But I thank you very much and I hope you vote yes on this. Thank you.
Any questions?
CHAIR CARROLL:
Ms. Nakata.

Thank you.

Any questions for the testifier?

Hearing none, thank you.

MS. NAKATA: The next and last testifier who has signed up is Dave Williams.
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MR. WILLIAMS: Hello, my name is Dave Williams. I'm in favor of this project. I think they've
worked very hard to address every reasonable objection, from gating, to walkways, to mixed use,
to affordable housing, and many more. I think we've heard all of that this evening. People are
going to come to Maui whether we like it or not. We should be working towards providing the
right kinds of communities for these people to live in, and I think this is the right kind of
community.
Finally, unlike some of the people I've heard earlier, I like multi-million dollar second and third
homes. Where else can you find people who readily pay tens of thousands of dollars in property
taxes every year; that pays for the roads and the schools that they rarely use and that we need; in
addition, support our local economy every month by paying for services from our local
community. They also tend to support things like our Maui Arts and Cultural Center. I say who
are these people, how can we get more of them to move here and live in these homes. Thank
you.
AUDIENCE: .,. (applause) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Could I ask what you do for a living, sir?
MR. WILLIAMS: I'm retired.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You're retired?
MR. WILLIAMS: But what I do do is I, I'm a volunteer consultant for small businesses here on Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Excellent. I, I appreciate your perspective, but. . .it would be
interesting to know how many of our kama'aina have left this island because there's no housing
for them. And so there is a concern that as we build housing for multi-millionaires, they will
come and more of our kama' aina will have to leave.
MR. WILLIAMS: I don't think those are mutually exclusive.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. WILLIAMS: I think what we're talking about here is a combination of both, and I think we need
both because they both serve a definite purpose in our community. One provides a lot of money
for the resources we need to build our community, while the others
provide... (inaudible). .. homes for the people that are working in our community, and I think
both can work side by side.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Nakata.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause). .. ,
CHAIR CARROLL: That was the last person that was signed up to give testimony. Is there anyone else
that wishes to give testimony at this time? Please come forward, give your name at the
microphone, and afterwards please go to the end and sign up.
NIKHILANANDA: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Members of the Land Use Committee. My name is
Nikhilananda. I first want to wish everybody a Happy New Year.
Since this Committee is the Land Use Committee, the specific issue I believe that you're dealing
with is the appropriateness of the use of this land, and the appropriate use of this land is not this
development. The people that have testified tonight, we have the same type of people always
testifying. Those that come here and they say, "Oh, we need affordable housing for my kids and
my grandkids, and I need this development, and I need to work. And so I'm hoping that we'll
build housing for people that is appropriate so that my kids, etcetera can afford it." And a
number of people have come up today and talked that are either realtors or in the trade unions, or
construction, etcetera. We need thousands of appropriate housing. This is going to provide, and
as somebody said earlier, I think it's 20 percent of the houses. Ifwe're going to build, what we
need to do is change the way Maui County does development and planning, and I've talked to a
number of you about this before. We shouldn't have developers come in here and say here's the
project, this is what I want to do. We should have the County Council take the responsibility,
and that would be in the planning and land use, and say this is what we need. We need
affordable housing, we need thousands of appropriate houses. So let's look at the appropriate
place to build them. Building it down here, thousands of people ... you've already heard
discussion of water, roads, the crowded beaches, the lack of access, etcetera. This is not the
place to do it. This is a place where we want to leave it in perpetuity as it is. We need to put this
kind of development, a multi-use development, in appropriate places so it's incumbent upon this
Committee and this Council to look at appropriate places to build it. This is not the place to do
it.
So let's hope that we look at this, we take the good suggestions and the good designs that have
been presented here, and utilize. .. --(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- .. .it is appropriate around this
island. This Committee is responsible for three islands. Let's look at the place in Maui County
where we develop it. .. having this number of houses, high-end houses. Most of the people that
testified here, their grandkids will never be able to afford it because this, if this project goes
through, these houses are going to be high-end for either new arrivals or for the small percentage
of people on this island who will then move up into more expensive housing.
So take the good suggestions of this project, take the insight that has been provided to us through
this project, and let's put it someplace where it deserves to be built, not a place where it's already
struggling with water usage, with the roads. There's no high school down here, there's
one .. .look at this middle school, the number of people that would be moving in here. Again,
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this land, if we really want to look at Maui for the future, is land that needs to be left as it is to
provide this area of Maui County a special place that doesn't have the impact that a lot of other
sections of this island have already experienced. So look at this place and say yes, this is a fine
project someplace else. Let's say yes to Maui because Maui is the most important, not that some
developers and some people make, you know, some money.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
NIKHILANANDA: Thank you very much. And again, Happy New Year to all of you guys.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
NIKHILANANDA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Is there anyone else who
Mr. Nikhilananda [sic], go sign up. Thank you.
afterwards please go sign up.

wishes to give testimony?
Please,
Give your name at the microphone and

MS. PRINCE: Okay, good evening. My name is Melissa Prince and .. .I wasn't planning on testifying
tonight, but when I just heard that gentleman there saying that he would love to see more second
and third homes here, you know, I, I just have to tell you I think that's pure gluttony, and I am so
angry.
CHAIR CARROLL: Excuse me, excuse me. Please address the Council.
MS. PRINCE: Okay. I, I, I feel that that attitude is pure gluttony, and I am mad because I have worked
with people who are on... are in poverty conditions. And when I see those homeless people
down at the harbor and hear that the, the State affordable housing units are unoccupied because
the State has not hired enough people to fix those apartments up, and then people come in here
and buy second and third homes, I am so infuriated. I am angry. And I just want to say that I
oppose this project for that reason.
Now those, those people ... Charlie Jencks, he has come in against Akaku and the working class
poor, and this is, you know, you ... they have done this to themselves. When they came after us,
it was like what little we have they're going to take it away. And I, and I. .. you know, they did
the worst thing they could do was to come after us, because now I'm going to come after them.
I'm sorry. Yeah, laugh, go ahead and laugh.
CHAIR CARROLL: Please keep your remarks to the agenda item.
MS. PRINCE: Thank you. That is all I have to say.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you. And if you
could please sign up by the end of the table. Is there anyone else who wishes to give testimony?
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Please come forward, give your name at the microphone, and afterwards please go sign up.
Thank you.
MS. KOZLO: Wow, I hope I can get this through clearly. My name is Dale Kozlo, and that kind oftore
at me, just listening to this woman, and I empathize with her situation and her anger. However, I
live on the north shore of Maui, and I've taken the time to read the papers, listen carefully to
what this project has proposed. I came early today at 3:00 p.m. to visit the site, to listen carefully
to what Charlie had to say. I looked carefully at it, and considering everything that I've heard
tonight and with my own careful thought, I do believe that Charlie Jencks and the people that are
working with him have made every attempt to try their earnest, their best, and work hard to try
and put together a community that meets many different needs and aspects of what would create
a solid and successful community here with this project. I'm in favor of it after listening to
everything that's been said tonight. And I'd like to know how many people in this room by
standing are also in favor of this project. Please stand if you're in favor.
CHAIR CARROLL: Excuse me, no.
MS. KOZLO: You're not allowed to do that?
CHAIR CARROLL: No.
MS. KOZLO: Okay. Well, I'm going to make an assessment then that based on what I've heard tonight
and the fact that many of these people have given up very much of their day, that they are in
favor, and I hope you'll seriously consider it. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: None? Thank you. Excuse me .. .if you could please go sign up. Thank you. Is
there anyone else that wishes to give testimony tonight? Seeing none, if there's no objections,
we are going to close public testimony.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, I think we have one more.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry. Please give your name at the microphone, and afterwards go sign
up.
MR. BARDOS: Hi, my name is Dan Bardos, and just after listening to everything, I don't see Maui
County here. All I see is just a fraction of the working people and ...just not the people ofMaui.
And .. .I'll ... that's just what I want to say. I don't know. It's, it's not the voice of the people of
Maui on most of these concerns ...just the people just don't come out. Thank you.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Thank you. Is there anyone else that
wishes to give testimony that I might have missed? Alright seeing none, if there's no objection
again, public testimony is closed.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Public testimony is now closed .
. • •END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. .•

CHAIR CARROLL: Members and members of the public, it is nine minutes after 9:00. I had hoped to
finish a little earlier so we could have some more discussion. However, the hour is late and we
do have, our employees have to be work, at work early in the morning. I would like to thank all
of you for attending the meeting this evening. If there is anything else that you would like to
send forward to the Council after hearing the presenters and the applicant and the Department,
you can either do so by writing or E-mail to the Council Members and... get your ideas and your
concerns over to us that way. I hope to see you all again. We will schedule this when we can.
There are some concerns that we have to address and information we have to get. And we will
post the next meeting in a timely manner, and I cannot tell you when that will be at this time.
Again, thank you for coming.
adjourned. . .. (gavel) . ..
ACTION:

This meeting of January 4, 2006 of the Land Use is now

DEFER pending further discussion.

ADJOURN: 9: 11 p.m.

APPROVED:

Land Use Committee

Transcribed by: Tammy M. Frias
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